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Chairman’s Statement

ERBE

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Director”) of SH Group
(Holdings) Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present the annual report

of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 March 2022 (the “Year” or “FY2022").

The Group is principally engaged in providing electrical and mechanical
engineering (“E&M engineering") services in Hong Kong. We focus our efforts
on the supply, installation and maintenance of mechanical ventilation and
airconditioning system (“MVAC system”) and also provide services in relation
to low voltage electrical system and other E&M systems, including fire services
system, plumbing and drainage system, in both private and public sectors.

RESULTS

During the Year, the Group recorded an increase in revenue by approximately
HK$45.7 million, or 6.5%, from approximately HK$707.6 million for the year
ended 31 March 2021 (“Last Year” or “FY2021") to approximately HK$753.3
million for the Year. The revenue generated by projects of MVAC system
contributed 84.4% of total revenue of the Group whilst revenue generated by
projects of low voltage electrical system contributed 15.6% of total revenue of
the Group.

The Group recorded a profit for the Year of approximately HK$1 1.7 million,
representing a decrease of 73.5% or HK$32.4 million from approximately
HK$44.1 million in FY2021.

DIVIDEND

The Board has recommended a payment of final dividend of HKI.0 cent per
ordinary share for the Year (202 1: HK3.9 cents per ordinary share).

BUSINESS OVERVIEW
MVAC system

During the Year, the Group was awarded | | projects in relation to MVAC system
installation with an aggregate contract sum of approximately HK$682.9 million.
The awarded projects are in both private and public sectors, which are not
limited to residential projects but also involving in community facilities, MVAC
system maintenance and replacement projects. The various types of awarded new
projects, together with the continual progress of projects awarded in previous
years, would provide the Group stable revenue and earnings in the coming years.
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Low voltage electrical system

During the Year, the Group was awarded | project in relation to electrical system
installation with a contract sum of approximately HK$108.7 million. The revenue
contributed from projects of low voltage electrical system to the total Group’s
revenue have been maintaining at similar level from FY2021 to FY2022, around
15% to 20%, while the total revenue of the Group increased by 6.5%. This is
consistent with the business plan of the Group to steadily increase the revenue
and profit generated from projects of the low voltage electrical system.

OUTLOOK

In the past year, the Coronavirus Disease 2019 (*Covid-19"") pandemic continued
to affect worldwide and weighed heavily on the economy. Recently the fifth
wave of Covid-19 put pressure on Hong Kong's economic recovery. The
construction and E&M engineering services industry was facing severe situations
such as manpower shortage and logistic delays, which at the same time led to
an increase in material and transportation costs and also the difficulty of the
cargo transportation. These situations eventually caused the delay in the projects
in progress. The past year was a difficult year for most of the industries in Hong
Kong.

Looking forward, in order to address the housing demand of the public and
increase the housing supply, the Government has implemented a number of
housing policies and measures, including the development plan on the “Northern
Metropolis” and long-term initiatives such as “Land Sharing Pilot Scheme”,
rezoning sites for housing development and brownfield development etc.
Together with additional railway property development projects and private
development and redevelopment projects, the demand for the construction and
E&M engineering services is expected to increase in the coming years. At the
same time with the above impacts arising from the Covid-19 is gradually under
control in Hong Kong and Mainland China, the progress of the construction and
E&M engineering projects in Hong Kong is expected to ramp up. Meanwhile,
through the coordination between the relevant departments in Shenzhen and
Hong Kong, the time and costs for transportation between Hong Kong and
Mainland China are also expected to be back to normal gradually.
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Chairman’s Statement

ERBE

Inspite of the challenges encountered in the past year, the Group is confident
to achieve further growth in the future by striving for additional business
opportunities in different E&M engineering services, implementing various cost
control and engineering process optimisation measures which are in line with
the Development Bureau and Construction Industry Council's promotion of
“Construction 2.0" initiatives, including Building Information Modelling (BIM),
Modular Integrated Construction (MiC) and Design for Manufacture and
Assembly (DfMA) used in the E&M engineering sector to improve productivity.
Building on our long-established reputation, experience and proven track record
in the industry, the Group takes a positive attitude in achieving a steady growth
in our business and creating long-term value to our shareholders in the years to
come.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to thank the
management team and my fellow staff members for their contribution during
the Year. | would also like to express my sincere appreciation to our customers,
suppliers, subcontractors, other business partners and our shareholders for their
continuous support.

Yu Cheung Choy

Chairman
Hong Kong, 29 June 2022
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group is principally engaged in providing E&M engineering services in Hong
Kong. We provide services in relation to the supply, installation and maintenance
of MVAC system, and also provide services in relation to low voltage electrical
system and other E&M systems, including fire services system, plumbing and
drainage system, in both private and public sectors.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Our revenue increased by approximately HK$45.7 million, or 6.5%, from
approximately HK$707.6 million for FY2021 to approximately HK$753.3 million
for FY2022. Major projects awarded and major projects undertaken in FY2022
are outlined below.

Projects awarded in FY2022

During FY2022, we were awarded |2 projects with an aggregate contract sum of
approximately HK$791.6 million (out of which | project with a contract sum of
approximately HK$108.7 million was related to electrical system installation).

The following table sets forth the particulars of the five largest projects awarded
in FY2022 in terms of contract sum:
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MVAC system installation for a proposed residential Residential 21 December 2021 1454
development at Kai Tak Kowloon F=E “E-—%+-A=+—AH
NERENRRETERBROERBEEZAZRLE
MVAC system installation for a proposed residential Residential |7 February 2022 1254
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MARERNBEETHREARDBMBRZHERLE
Electrical system installation for a proposed Residential |6 February 2022 108.7
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Building services installation for a composite Non-residential 24 May 2021 740

development at Sai Wan Ho, Hong Kong FFE
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENWR D

Major projects undertaken in FY2022

During FY2022, the Group continued to focus our efforts on the supply,
installation and maintenance of MVAC system and low voltage electrical system.
Revenue contributed by projects relating to MVAC system and low voltage
electrical system accounted for approximately 84.4% and 15.6% respectively
(2021:81.1% and 18.9%).

The following table sets forth the particulars of the five largest projects

R —UFARENEEER
REZZTZZ0F  AEEEEZ TR H
fE - BRREEHMARZERARSRE
BERZL - BWBRZERA RS RERE
BERASABAIEE ZERIA K ED B
F844% N 156%( ZF — —F : 81.1% K%
189%) °

TREJZREERFAE T —WF

undertaken in FY2022 in terms of revenue contribution: HEEEH) RIE B 1T
Revenue
recognised
during FY2022
i
Type (Residential/ Contract sum b S 3
Non-residential) Gkl ERM
Key scope of work R (g2 Date of award HK$'million HK$'million
TETREE FiE) ERAS HEET BEET
MVAC system installation for a proposed Residential 27 September 2019 1638 86.3
residential development at Kai Tak, Kowloon Fx —E-NFAAZTtR
hERENBRETERARN
BHBRZERAERLE
MVAC system installation for a development Residential 23 September 2020 1527 8l
at Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon =z —EEFNAZT=H
NERYENERARNEHERZEZALE
Electrical system installation for a proposed Residential 31 January 2019 2143 67.7
residential development at Ap Lei Chau, Hong Kong fix “E-NEF—-A=1—H
BEBRMOREETEREANEREZALE
MVAC system installation for a residential Residential 9 May 2019 978 64.8
development at Wong Chuk Hang, Hong Kong fF=x “Z-NFRANA
BERMANEEERAROEHBREARZRLE
MVAC system installation for a commercial development Non-residential 29 April 2020 2750 60.7
at Chek Lap Kok, New Territories FEE “ZCTEMAZTAR
MRATEANERERRRORIBRZHARTE
Recent development and future prospects AR R ARRAIR

Subsequent to FY2022 and up to the date of this annual report, we were
awarded | project with a contract sum of approximately HK$160.9 million, which
was related to MVAC system installation.

The future prospects of the Group is discussed under the paragraph “Outlook”

of the Chairman’s Statement on pages 5 to 6 of this annual report.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

Our revenue increased by approximately HK$45.7 million, or 6.5%, from
approximately HK$707.6 million for FY2021 to approximately HK$753.3
million for FY2022. Revenue contributed by projects relating to the supply,
installation and maintenance of MVAC system and low voltage electrical system
was approximately 84.4% and 15.6% respectively (2021: 81.1% and 18.9%
respectively).

Gross profit and gross profit margin

Our gross profit decreased by approximately HK$15.8 million, or 25.7% from
approximately HK$61.4 million for FY2021 to approximately HK$45.6 million
for FY2022. Our gross profit margin decreased by approximately 2.6 percentage
points, from approximately 8.7% for FY2021 to approximately 6.1% for FY2022.
The decrease in gross profit and gross profit margin was mainly attributable to (i)
the adoption of a more competitive pricing strategy in securing new projects due
to intensified market competition; and (i) manpower shortage and logistic delay
caused by the Covid-19 pandemic which led to the delay of the Group’s projects
in progress and the increase in projects’ material and transportation costs.

Other income

Other income for FY2022 decreased by approximately HK$7.3 million, from
approximately HK$10.2 million for FY2021 to approximately HK$2.9 million for
FY2022.The decrease was mainly due to the fact that there was no government
grant received from the Employment Support Scheme launched by the Hong
Kong Government during FY2022 (202 1: HK$8.0 million).

Other gain and loss

We recorded an other loss of approximately HK$7.5 million for FY2022, which
was mainly attributable to the fair value loss of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), comparing to the other gain of approximately
HK$0.2 million for FY2021 due to the fair value gain on financial assets at FVTPL.

Net impairment loss (recognised) reversed under expected credit loss model

We recognised a net impairment loss under expected credit loss model of
approximately HK$ 1.3 million for FY2022, comparing to a reversal of net
impairment loss under expected credit loss model of approximately HK$2.7
million for FY2021.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BERENWR DN

Administrative expenses

Our administrative expenses mainly represented administrative staff costs,
professional fees and depreciation. The amount slightly increased by approximately
HK$0.9 million, from approximately HK$23.1 million for FY2021 to approximately
HK$24.0 million for FY2022.

Finance costs

Our finance costs decreased by approximately HK$0.2 million, from
approximately HK$0.3 million for FY202| to approximately HK$0.! million for
FY2022.The amount of FY2022 represented interest expenses on lease liabilities.

Income tax expenses

Our income tax expenses decreased by approximately HK$3.1 million, from
approximately HK$7.0 million for FY202| to approximately HK$3.9 million for
FY2022 due to the combined effect of the above factors. The effective tax rate
for FY2022 was approximately 24.9% (2021: 13.8%).

Profit attributable to owners of the Company

Based on the above factors, profit attributable to owners of the Company
decreased by approximately HK$32.4 million, or approximately 73.5%, from
approximately HK$44.1 million for FY2021 to approximately HK$1 1.7 million for
FY2022.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE
Capital Structure

As at 31 March 2022, the capital structure of the Group consisted of equity of
approximately HK$290.8 million (202 1: HK$294.7 million). The Group did not
have any bank borrowing as at 3| March 2022 and 2021.

Cash position and fund available

During the Year, the Group maintained a healthy liquidity position, with working
capital being financed by our operating cash flows and the retained profits.

As at 3| March 2022, the Group held cash and cash equivalents of approximately
HK$249.5 million (202 1: HK$236.0 million).

As at 31 March 2022, the current ratio of the Group was approximately 2.0
times (2021: 2.1 times).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Bank Facilities

As at 3| March 2022, the Group had a facility agreement entered into with
a bank with a facility limit of HK$150.0 million (2021: HK$80.0 million). The
Company had made undertakings relating to certain performance obligations of
the controlling shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”), namely Mr
Yu Cheung Choy (“Mr.YU"), who is the chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”)
and an executive Director, and Mr. Lau Man Ching (“Mr Lau”), who is the
chief executive officer of the Company (the “Chief Executive Officer”) and an
executive Director, pursuant to the facility agreement including the following:
(i) MrYu and Mr. Lau undertake to maintain as the largest shareholders of the
Company directly or indirectly; and (i) Mr.Yu and Mr. Lau shall remain as the
chairman or director of the Company. The facility agreement remains effective as
at the date of this annual report.

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had another facility agreement entered into
with a bank with a facility limit of approximately HK$90.2 million (202 1: HK$6 1.4
million) with the following obligations undertaken by the Group: (i) In case of
Mr.Yu and Mr Lau are not the major shareholders of the Company, the Group
should notify the bank 14 days in advance; and (i) In case of Mr.Yu is not entitled
to be chairman of the Company, the Group should notify the bank 14 days in
advance.

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had another facility agreement entered into
with a bank with a facility limit of HK$80.0 million (2021: HK$80.0 million) with
the following obligations undertaken by the Group: (i) In case of MrYu and Mr.
Lau are not the major shareholders of the Company, the Group should notify the
bank 14 days in advance; and (ii) In case of MrYu and Mr. Lau are not entitled to
be chairman or director of the Company, the Group should notify the bank 4
days in advance.

GEARING RATIO

As at 31 March 2022, the Group did not have any bank borrowing and its gearing
ratio was nil (2021 nil).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENWR D

NET CURRENT ASSETS

As at 3| March 2022, the Group had net current assets of approximately
HK$216.0 million (2021: HK$232.2 million). The decrease in net current asset
position was mainly attributable to i) the purchase of financial assets at FVTPL;
and ii) declaration and payment of final dividend in respect of FY2021 to the
Shareholders during the Year, offset by the net profit generated from the Group’s
operations during the Year.

The Group'’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements and its
compliance with covenants in relation to banking facility agreements, so as to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines
of funding from the banks to meet its liquidity requirements. The Board is not
aware of any liquidity issue that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

The Group's capital expenditures for FY2022 amounted to approximately
HK$0.2 million (2021: HK$0.2 million), which was incurred for the purchase of
property and equipment.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group's revenue-generating activities were transacted in Hong Kong Dollar,
which is the functional currency of the Group. The Board considers that the
Group was not exposed to significant foreign exchange risk, and had not entered
into any financial instrument for hedging. The Board will review the Group's
foreign exchange risk and exposure from time to time and will apply hedging
where necessary.

PERFORMANCE GUARANTEES AND CONTINGENT LIABILITY

As at 3| March 2022, performance guarantees of approximately HK$134.8
million (2021: HK$155.4 million) were given by banks in favour of the Group’s
customers as security for the due performance and observance of the Group’s
obligations under the contracts entered into between the Group and its
customers. If the Group fails to provide satisfactory performance to its customers
to whom performance guarantees have been given, such customers may demand
the banks to pay to them the sum or sum stipulated in such demand.The Group
will become liable to compensate such banks accordingly. The performance
guarantees will be released upon completion of the contracts work.

The Group had no contingent liability as at 31 March 2022 and 2021.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2022, the Group's leasehold land and buildings amounted to
approximately HK$17.8 million (31 March 2021: HK$18.5 million) were pledged
with a bank to secure the banking facilities including performance guarantees
issued by the bank.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had capital commitments of approximately
HK$0.1 million in relation to acquisition of property and equipment contracted
but not provided for (202 1: HK$O.1 million).

EMPLOYEES, TRAINING AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had a total of 207 employees (2021: 191). The
remuneration offered to employees generally includes salaries, medical benefits
and bonus. In general, the Group determines salaries of its employees based on
each employee’s qualification, position and seniority. The Group provides training
to its employees according to the work requirements.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

The Group did not have any material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures during FY2022.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD
The Group did not have any significant investments held as at 3| March 2022.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

The Group did not have plans for material investments or capital assets as at
31 March 2022.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERHRE

The Company is committed to maintaining good corporate governance standard
and procedures to ensure the integrity, transparency and quality of disclosure in
order to enhance its Shareholders’ value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company aims to achieve high standard of corporate governance which
is crucial to the development of the Group and safeguard the interests of the
Shareholders.

The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the "CG Code") as set out in Appendix |4 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”) as its own code of corporate
governance.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company was in compliance with the code
provisions set out in the CG Code during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code™) as set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the
Directors. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all the Directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the required standards set out in the
Model Code throughout the Year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Company, and is
responsible for setting up the overall strategy as well as reviewing the operation
and financial performance of the Group. The Board reserved for its decision
or consideration matters covering overall Group strategy, major acquisitions
and disposals, annual budgets, annual and interim results, recommendations on
Directors’ appointment or re-appointment, approval of major capital transactions
and other significant operational and financial matters. The management was
delegated the authority and responsibility by the Board for the daily management
of the Group. In addition, the Board has also delegated various responsibilities
to the Board committees. Further details of these committees are set out in this
report.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board currently consists of six Directors including three executive Directors,
and three independent non-executive Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yu Cheung Choy (Chairman)
Mr. Lau Man Ching (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Yu Ho Chi

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lam Yim Nam
Mr. Lee Wing Kee
Dr. Law Man Wah

Save for (i) MrYu Cheung Choy is the father of MrYu Ho Chi, and (ii) Mr.
Yu Cheung Choy and Mr. Lau Man Ching entered into the acting-in-concert
confirmation on 7 July 2016, whereby they confirmed that, among other things,
since 21 July 2004, they have been actively cooperating with one another and
acting in concert, with an aim to achieving consensus and concerted action on
all operating and financing decisions and major affairs relating to each member
company within the Group; the Board members have no financial, business, family
or other material/relevant relationships with each other. Such balanced Board
composition is formed to ensure strong independence exists across the Board.
The composition of the Board reflects the balanced skills and experience for
effective leadership. The biographical information of the Directors are set out on
pages 32 to 36 under the section headed "Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” of this annual report.

Directors’ Training

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the board remains
informed and relevant.

All Directors have participated in continuous professional development and
provided to the Company a record of training they received for the Year.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERHRE

The individual training record of each Director received for the Year is
summarised below:

AT AFEREFTCRINEAE
FlFcE -

Training Received

(Notes)
Name of Directors EEpns 2z EI
(BH&E)
Mr. Yu Cheung Choy (Chairman) MR EE (EE) |
Mr: Lau Man Ching (Chief Executive Officer) 8 54 (77 44%E) I
Mr. Yu Ho Chi GIV-E =Pt 1,2
Mr. Lam Yim Nam MRFELE l,2
Mr. Lee Wing Kee FoKERAE |
Dr. Law Man Wah BN EEL 12
Notes: Bz -
Reading articles, training materials and updates as regards legal and regulatory changes and matters HERMEAENEEEUARBITERALRA
of relevance to the Directors in the discharge of their duties. BEB2XE  FIIMHEEREM -
2. Attending training courses/seminars/conferences/workshops on topics relating to the directors’ 2. 2008 BESHE R R RIR S RE
duties and the Listing Rules. Mg gH T -
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer FERITHBEAR

Code provision A2.| of the CG Code requires that the responsibilities between
the chairman and the chief executive officer should be segregated.

The two positions are held separately by two individuals to ensure their
respective independence, accountability and responsibility. Mr.Yu Cheung Choy is
the Chairman and Mr. Lau Man Ching is the Chief Executive Officer. MrYu is in
charge of the management of the Board and strategic planning of the Group. Mr.
Lau is responsible for the day-to-day management of the Group’s business. The
Company considered that the division of responsibilities between the Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer is clearly established.

Code provision A2.7 of the CG Code requires that the chairman should at least
annually holds meetings with the independent non-executive Directors without
the presence of other Directors. During the Year, the Chairman had a meeting
with the independent non-executive Directors without the presence of other
Directors.
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Corporate Governance Report

Independent Non-executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors are appointed for a specific term and
they are also subject to the retirement by rotation at least once every three
years in accordance with the articles of association of the Company (the “Articles
of Association”).

The three independent non-executive Directors are persons of high caliber, with
academic and professional qualifications in the fields of construction, accounting
and finance. With their experience gained from various sectors, they provide
strong support towards the effective discharge of the duties and responsibilities
of the Board. Each independent non-executive Director gave a confirmation of
his independence to the Company, and the Company considered each of them is
independent under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Functions of the Board and Management

The Board is primarily responsible for establishing the overall strategies of the
Group, setting objectives and business development plans, assuming responsibility
of corporate governance and monitoring the performance of senior management.

The management, under the leadership of the executive Directors, is responsible
for implementing the strategies and plans established by the Board and reporting
on the Group’s operations to the Board on a regular basis to ensure effective
performance of the Board's responsibilities.

All the Directors have separate and independent access to the Group's senior
management to fulfill their duties. Independent professional advice can be sought
to assist the relevant Directors to discharge their duties at the Group's expense
upon their request. All the Directors have been provided with monthly updates
on the Group’s performance and financial position to enable the Board as a
whole and each Director to discharge their duties.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board adopted a board diversity policy on 6 December 2016 (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board.
The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity in the Board
and is committed to enhancing quality of opportunity in all aspects of its business.
The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the consideration against
a range of objective criteria, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills and knowledge.
The Company will also take into consideration its own business model and
specific needs from time to time in determining the optimal composition of the
Board.
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TEERHRE

The Board delegated certain duties under the Board Diversity Policy to the
nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination Committee”). The
Nomination Committee will discuss and review the necessity to set measurable
objectives for implementing the Board Diversity Policy from time to time.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its continued effectiveness from time to time.

Board Meetings

The Board intends to hold board meetings regularly at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals. Notices of not less than 14 days will be given
for all regular board meetings to provide all Directors with an opportunity to
attend and propose matters to be discussed in the meeting agenda. Agendas and
accompanying papers shall be sent not less than 3 days before the date of Board
meeting to ensure that the Directors are given sufficient time to review the
documents.

During the Year, the Board held 4 meetings. All Directors are given an opportunity
to include any matter in the agenda for regular Board meetings and are given
sufficient time to review the documents and information to be discussed in Board
meetings in advance. The attendance record of each Director is set out below:

EZeBETENE LR THE
FREERTARQ Th%*iAU%%
ZEE))  REBZECBITRTwmER
NS ERERTHTESS WE&E
{EBERHRIETEBAZ o

REZECRERBEBATRNES
KB ZITILEER Tﬁ-rﬁﬁ%ﬁ?—ir EHB
R o

=rix

=

)

= R
EESEREEFARNBETEHETED
mMiEEee# MEEZSHTER

E/]L%u//\ é’:%%ﬁﬁrﬁy‘f’ﬂikz
E2REF FIREFARSLESH
L/USZT ERNEZZREPIWNER -
ERELMEXteREFeeREH2
FEL=ZRERESE UBREZEER
E%F‘aﬁ%ﬁvﬁﬁ%ﬁXﬁ

#Kif* EFECERTHREHE 2
BEFYHAREREAKTINEERAE
gEEReREE ARNEFega®

TRIA MR EEEER K T w3

1#&%“*4 TREJBEZHFEEFS
Euﬁz nﬂﬁ‘

Number of
attendance
Name of Directors BExpR H IR E
Executive Directors BITEE
Mr. Yu Cheung Choy (Chairman) MRS (FE) 4/4
Mr. Lau Man Ching (Chief Executive Officer) 21X & ﬁ T (T AERL) 4/4
Mr. Yu Ho Chi BEE A 4/4
Independent Non-executive Directors BUHEHITEE
Mr. Lam Yim Nam MR REE 414
Mr. Lee Wing Kee FoKESE 4/4
Dr. Law Man Wah BN EEL 44

18 SH GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED Annual Report 2021-22



Corporate Governance Report

Board minutes are kept by the company secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary”) and are open for inspection by the Directors. Every Board member
is entitled to have access to Board papers and related materials and has
unrestricted access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary, and has
the liberty to seek external professional advice if so required.

Appropriate insurance cover has been arranged by the Company in respect of
relevant actions against its Directors.
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General Meetings BREAE
During the Year, | general meeting of the Company, being the 2021 annual REREE XA BIT—KEKREKXR
general meeting of the Company, was held on 25 August 2021. =L 7N 7EA_ = :_ﬂz)\ﬂ ‘f’ﬂ
Elﬁf‘iﬂE’J_y_ FRRBFAE
Number of
attendance
Name of Directors ExpR HERE
Executive Directors BITEE
Mr. Yu Cheung Choy (Chairman) R AL (EE) 1/1
Mr. Lau Man Ching (Chief Executive Officer) 21X & ﬁ i (T #ERL) 171
Mr. Yu Ho Chi GIYCE =Pt /1
Independent Non-executive Directors BUHEHITEE
Mr. Lam Yim Nam MA R T 1/1
Mr. Lee Wing Kee PRERAE I/1
Dr: Law Man Wah BN EB T /1
The Board is responsible for maintaining an on-going dialogue with Shareholders EEeAHERRHERSHE 7t/ <

and in particular, uses annual general meeting(s) or other general meetings to
communicate with them and encourage their participation.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Nomination Committee with written terms of
reference on 6 December 2016 and currently consists of three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Lee Wing Kee (as chairman), Mr. Lam Yim Nam
and Dr. Law Man Wah. The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee
is currently made available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

Terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are aligned with the code
provisions set out in the CG Code.

The primary duties and roles of the Nomination Committee include, but are not
limited to, (a) reviewing the structure, size and composition and diversity (including
the skills, knowledge, educational background, experience and diversity) of the
Board at least annually and making recommendations on any proposed changes
to the Board to complement the Company's corporate strategy; (b) identifying
individuals suitably qualified to become members of the Board and selecting or
making recommendations to the Board in the selection of individuals nominated
for directorships; and (c) assessing the independence of independent non-
executive Directors.

To ensure changes to the Board composition can be managed without undue
disruption, there should be a formal, considered and transparent procedure for
selection, appointment and re-appointment of Directors, as well as plans in place
for orderly succession (if considered necessary), including periodical review of
such plans. The appointment of a new Director (to be an additional Director or
fill a casual vacancy as and when it arises) or any re-appointment of Directors is
a matter for decision by the Board upon the recommendation of the proposed
candidate by the Nomination Committee.

The criteria to be applied in considering whether a candidate is qualified shall
be his or her ability to devote sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the
Company and contribute to the diversity of the Board as well as the effective
carrying out by the Board of the responsibilities which, in particular, are set out as
follows:

(a) participating in Board meetings to bring an independent judgment on
issues of strategy, policy, performance, accountability, resources, key

appointments and standards of conducts;

(b)  taking the lead where potential conflicts of interests arise;
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serving on the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit
Committee”), the remuneration committee of the Company (the
“Remuneration Committee”) and the Nomination Committee (in the
case of candidate for non-executive Director) and other relevant Board
committees, if invited;

bringing a range of business and financial experience to the Board, giving
the Board and any committee on which he or she serves the benefit of
his or her skills, expertise, and varied backgrounds and qualifications and
diversity through attendance and participation in the Board/committee
meetings;

scrutinising the Company’s performance in achieving agreed corporate
goals and objectives, and monitoring the reporting of performance;

ensuring the committees on which he or she serves to perform their
powers and functions conferred on them by the Board; and

conforming to any requirement, direction and regulation that may
from time to time be prescribed by the Board or contained in the
constitutional documents of the Company or imposed by legislation or
the Listing Rules, where appropriate.

If the candidate is proposed to be appointed as an independent non-executive
Director, his or her independence shall be assessed in accordance with, among
other things, the factors as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, subject to any

amendments as may be made by the Stock Exchange from time to time. Where

applicable, the totality of the candidate’s education, qualifications and experience

shall also be evaluated to consider whether he or she has the appropriate

professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise for filling the office of an independent non-executive Director with
such qualifications or expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing

Rules.
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During the Year, the Nomination Committee held | meeting.

RAEE  RRREGCRIT KR8 -

Number of
attendance
Name of Members REHA HERE
Mr. Lee Wing Kee (Chairman) PKERE(EE) /1
Mr. Lam Yim Nam AR LA 11
Dr. Law Man Wah N EEE LT I/1

A summary of the work performed by the Nomination Committee during the
Year is listed below:

S assessing the independence of the independent non-executive Directors;
C considering the re-election of Directors; and
. reviewing the structure, size and diversity of the Board.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee with written terms of
reference on 6 December 2016 and currently consists of three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Lam Yim Nam (as chairman), Mr. Lee Wing Kee
and Dr. Law Man Wah.The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
is currently made available on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company's
website.

Terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are aligned with the code
provisions set out in the CG Code.

The primary duties and roles of the Remuneration Committee include, but not
limited to, (a) making recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure
for the remuneration of all Directors and senior management personnel and
on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing the
policy on such remuneration; (b) making recommendations to the Board on
the specific remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management; (c) reviewing and approving management's remuneration proposals
with reference to the Board's corporate goals and objectives; and (d) making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-executive Directors.
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During the Year, the Remuneration Committee held | meeting.

RAEE  FHRBEERITREH

A F’—‘.\Z—\i&ﬂ:

v

= ©

=11}

Number of
attendance
Name of Members REHA HERE
Mr. LamYim Nam (Chairman) MRELE (F/E) /1
Mr. Lee Wing Kee FoKESEE 1/
Dr. Law Man Wah ENEE L 1/

In addition to the Remuneration Committee meeting, the Remuneration
Committee also dealt with matters by way of circulation during the Year.

A summary of the work performed by the Remuneration Committee during the
Year is listed below:

. considering the adoption of a staff welfare scheme to current and potential
talents;
. reviewing the bonus proposal for the executive Directors and senior

management for the Year; and

. considering the salary review proposal for Directors and senior
management for the financial year ending 31 March 2023.

The emoluments payable to Directors and senior management depend on their
respective contractual terms under the employment agreements, if any, and is
fixed by the Board with reference to the recommendation of the Remuneration
Committee, the performance of the Group and the prevailing market conditions.
Details of the remuneration of the Directors and senior management are set out
in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

Senior Management’s Remuneration

Senior management's remuneration of the Group for the Year falls within the
following bands:
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FETEBER T AREEHEEE -

AEEHME B SETH TIERRL T ¢

g ZERBARBEATRAE T
wAIETE

© EHNAFERABATESESA
EREMEALEHE &

. ERBE_T_=F=-A=+—
AtMBFEFEEERGRERE
it et e o

BNEELRSREEENMESART
HEEBREREBHHENS K GEK (N
B) MHEFEL2EFHEEeNE
o ARENRBELBTHRBEE °
EENEREEENFINFERRES
FATSHRR IR 6 ©

B R E T E R
AEERAFEENREEE N H N
FUATEE :

Number of
individuals

AB

Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 ZTZ |,000,0008 7T

HK$ 1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000
HK$ 1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000

1,000,001 7T Z 1,500,000 7T 3
1,500,001 7T 2 2,000,000 & 7T |
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee with written terms of reference
on 6 December 2016 and currently consists of three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Dr. Law Man Wah (as chairman), Mr. Lam Yim Nam and Mr.
Lee Wing Kee. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee is currently made
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

Terms of reference of the Audit Committee are aligned with the code provisions
set out in the CG Code.

The primary duties and roles of the Audit Committee include, but not limited to,
(a) making recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of the external auditor, approving the remuneration and terms
of engagement of the external auditor, and any questions of its resignation or
dismissal; (b) monitoring integrity of financial statements and annual report and
accounts, half-year report and, if prepared for publication, quarterly reports, and
reviewing significant financial reporting judgments contained in them; and (c)
reviewing the financial controls, risk management and internal control systems of
the Group.

The Audit Committee meets the external auditor regularly to discuss any area
of concern during the audit. The Audit Committee shall review the interim and
annual reports before submission to the Board. The Audit Committee focuses
not only on the impact of the changes in accounting policies and practices but
also on the compliance with accounting standards, the Listing Rules and the legal
requirements in the review of the Company’s interim and annual reports.
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During the Year, the Audit Committee held 2 meetings. RAFEE  BZEZEGCBITMRER -
Number of
attendance

Name of Members REHEH H IR E

Dr. Law Man Wah (Chairman) BENERLT (LE) 2/2

Mr. Lam Yim Nam MK mEE 22

Mr: Lee Wing Kee oRERAE 212
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In addition to the Audit Committee meetings, the Audit Committee also dealt
with matters by way of circulation during the Year.

A summary of the work performed by the Audit Committee during the Year is
listed below:

. reviewed the Group's annual financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2021 and interim financial statements for the six months ended
30 September 2021 and the related results announcements, documents
and other matters or issues raised by the external auditor;

. reviewed the terms of engagement of the external auditor;

. recommended to the Board, for the approval by the Shareholders, of the
re-appointment of the auditor of the Company; and

. discussed and confirmed with the management the effectiveness of the
Group’s financial reporting process, risk management and internal control
systems.

The Audit Committee noted the existing risk management and internal control
systems of the Group and also noted that review of the same will be carried out
annually.

The accounts for the Year were audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu whose
term of office will expire upon the conclusion of the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company (the 2022 AGM"”). The Audit Committee has
recommended to the Board the re-appointment of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as
auditor of the Company at the 2022 AGM.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The corporate governance functions are performed by the Board.

The corporate governance functions are to develop and review the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance to comply with the CG Code
and other legal or regulatory requirements, to oversee the Company’s orientation
program for new Director, to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors, to develop, review and monitor the
code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors, and to review the Company’s disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.

During the Year, the Board had reviewed the training and continuous professional
development of Directors, the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
the Company'’s disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the Year, the remuneration paid/payable to the Company's auditor is set
out below:

EERRAE
ERERABEESHESTSRET

CEBERBESERIENARRLE
ERNBRLRERABETERERTR

REMERKEEMRTE BEEARNRAY
MEESRTHRATEIIRE  BEHNRE

TEENRIIRBEERRE  BE -
EHNERERANEEREEZNTRT
Ak & RFM(E)  UREBHARFA
IEREAMEHYBEE

RAEE  EFRORITEFNEIR
SEELBRE  AATMTLEEAT
AR A R A AR AR E R
-

R BTN &
RAFE - BN BAARRREES
ez T

Fee paid/payable

Services rendered 2R MR Bt ENER
HK$’000
FHET
Audit services BEZRS 1,558
Non-audit services* FEBAZ IR * 661
Total: a8t 2219
R The non-audit services mainly include tax compliance services and other advisory services. * HFERRBEEBERBERRBEREMENR
AR ©
COMPANY SECRETARY RNEAMWE

The Company engaged an external professional company secretarial services
provider, Uni-1 Corporate Services Limited (“Uni-1"), to provide compliance
and full range of company secretarial services to the Group in order to assist the
Group to cope with the changing regulatory environment and to suit different
commercial needs.

Mr. Tse Kam Fai (“Mr Tse"), the representative of Uni-1, was appointed as the
named Company Secretary.
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Mr. Lau Man Ching, an executive Director and the Chief Executive Officer; is the
primary point of contact at the Company for the Company Secretary.

According to the requirements of Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr. Tse has taken
no less than |15 hours of relevant professional training during the Year.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the Shareholders and the Board. An annual general
meeting of the Company shall be held in each year and at the place as may be
determined by the Board. Each general meeting, other than an annual general
meeting, shall be called an extraordinary general meeting.

Shareholders to convene an extraordinary general meeting

Pursuant to article 58 of the Articles of Association, any one or more
Shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two months
after the deposit of such requisition. The aforesaid written requisition should be
deposited to the Board or the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong at Units 603-606, 6/F Tower |, Cheung Sha Wan
Plaza, 833 Cheung Sha Wan Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene
such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result
of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

Putting enquiries by Shareholders to the Board

Shareholder(s) may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the Board
in writing through the Company Secretary by post to Units 603-606, 6/F, Tower |,
Cheung Sha Wan Plaza, 833 Cheung Sha Wan Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong, or via
email at the contact information as provided on the website of the Company.
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Procedures for putting forward proposals by Shareholders at general meeting

Save for the procedures for the Shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting, there are no provisions allowing Shareholders to propose
new resolutions at the general meetings under the Articles of Association
or the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, as amended, modified and
supplemented. Shareholders may follow the procedures set out above to
convene an extraordinary general meeting for any business specified in such
written requisition. The written requisition must state the objects of the meeting,
and must be signed by the relevant Shareholder(s) and deposited to the Board
or the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong at Units 603-606, 6/F, Tower |, Cheung Sha Wan Plaza, 833 Cheung Sha Wan
Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

VOTING BY POLL

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of shareholders at a
general meeting must be taken by poll except where the chairman, in good
faith, decides to allow a resolution which relates purely to a procedural or
administrative matter to be voted on by a show of hands. As such, all the
resolutions to be set out in the notice of the 2022 AGM will be voted by poll.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company is committed to a policy of open and regular communication and
reasonable disclosure of information to the Shareholders.

Information of the Company is disseminated to the Shareholders in the following

manner:
S delivery of annual and interim reports to all Shareholders;
. publication of announcements on the annual and interim results on

the Stock Exchange's website, and issue of other announcements and
shareholders’ circulars in accordance with the continuing disclosure
obligations under the Listing Rules; and

. general meeting of the Company is also an effective communication
channel between the Board and Shareholders.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the Group's consolidated
financial statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Group and of the financial performance and cash flows
of the Group for that year. In preparing the consolidated financial statements for
the Year, the Board has selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently; made judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable
and prepared the accounts on a going concern basis.

The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and necessary steps to
safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other
irregularities.

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that the Group has
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable
future and that, for this reason, it is appropriate to adopt the going concern basis
in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the risk management and
internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness. Such systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

The Board has delegated its responsibilities (with relevant authorities) of risk
management and internal control to the Audit Committee, who oversees
management in the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems, and management has provided a
confirmation to the Audit Committee and the Board on the effectiveness of
these systems for the Year.

Risk management

The Company has already reviewed its risk management framework and
processes and has implemented relevant measures resulting from this exercise
that aim to enhance its framework and processes. In particular, the Company
has developed, approved and implemented a risk management system, which
is defined and supported by its endorsed risk management policy. The terms of
reference of the Audit Committee has included its responsibility for an effective
system of internal control and risk management.
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The Company’s methodology for its risk assessment comprises risk identification,
risk assessment, risk response, and risk monitoring and reporting. These processes
are performed at least once a year to address changes in the Group’s business
environment.

Business continuity plan

As an integral part of risk management, the Company has formulated and
documented a Business Continuity Plan (*BCP”), which is reviewed regularly
and updated from time to time whenever the Board thinks fit. The BCP enables
senior management to preserve stakeholder value in the event of a crisis/incident
by responding promptly to the situation and resuming the Group’s business
functions to normal situation as quickly and efficiently as possible.

Internal control measures

The internal control system of the Group covers its major business aspects such
as revenue management, expenditure management, human resources and payroll,
cash and treasury management, financial reporting, compliance and information
technology. The internal control measures are supervised by management team
including executive Directors. The management team is responsible to identify
risks and internal control deficiencies, evaluate the internal control system of
the Group from time to time and implementing additional control measures,
if necessary, to improve the internal control system. Results of the internal
assessments would be reported to the Audit Committee, which is responsible to
review the financial information and supervise the financial reporting system and
internal controls system of the Group.

Internal audit function

The Board conducted an annual review on the effectiveness of risk management
and internal control systems, covering all material controls such as financial,
operational and compliance controls. In addition, the Board has appointed an
international accountancy firm to review the internal control systems of the
Group on an on-going basis which covers all major operations of the Group.The
Board considered that the risk management and internal control systems of the
Company for the Year were effective and adequate.

Accounting and financial reporting functions

The Board conducted a review of the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the Company's accounting
and financial reporting functions for the year ended 31 March 2022, and
considered the above resource components to be adequate.
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Handling and dissemination of inside information

The Group regulates the handling and dissemination of inside information
according to the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information” published by
the Securities and Futures Commission to ensure inside information remains
confidential until the disclosure of such information is appropriately approved,
and the dissemination of such information is efficiently and consistently made. The
Company regularly reminds the Directors and employees about due compliance
with all policies regarding the inside information. Also, the Company keeps
Directors, senior management and employees appraised of the latest regulatory
updates. The Company shall prepare or update appropriate guidelines or policies
to ensure the compliance with regulatory requirements.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company seeks to maintain a balance between meeting Shareholders’
expectations and prudent capital management with a sustainable dividend policy.
The Company's dividend policy aims to allow Shareholders to participate in
the Company's profit and for the Company to retain adequate reserves for the
Group'’s future growth. In proposing any dividend payout, the Company would
consider various factors including but not limited to the Group's overall results
of operation, financial condition, expected working capital requirements, capital
expenditure requirements, liquidity position, future expansions plans, the amount
of retained profits and distributable reserves of the Company, general economic
conditions, business cycle of the Group's business, other internal or external
factors that may have an impact on the business or financial performance and
position of the Group and any other factors that the Board deems relevant.

Any declaration and payment of the dividends by the Company will be subject
to any restrictions under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the Articles
of Association, the Listing Rules and any other applicable laws and regulations.
The Company does not have any pre-determined dividend distribution ratio.
The Company’s dividend distribution record in the past may not be used as a
reference or basis to determine the level of dividends that may be declared or
paid by the Company in the future.The dividend policy shall in no way constitute
a legally binding commitment by the Group in respect of its future dividend and/
or in no way obligate the Group to declare a dividend at any time or from time
to time.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year, there was no change in the constitutional documents of the
Company.

The Articles of Association are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENSREEERE

Executive Directors

Mr.Yu Cheung Choy (BT Ef), aged 58, is the Chairman and an executive
Director. He is also the director of all subsidiaries of the Company. As the founder
of the Group, he became a controlling shareholder of Golden Light Engineering
Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, in March 1987
and established Shun Hing E & M Engineering Limited (“Shun Hing HK"), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, in August 1987. He is primarily
responsible for leading the overall development, business strategies and expansion
of the Group. MrYu is a director of Prosperously Legend Limited (“‘Prosperously
Legend"), which is a substantial Shareholder within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO™)
and the controlling Shareholder (as defined under the Listing Rules).

Mr.Yu obtained a bachelor degree of engineering (building service management)
with honours from Washington InterContinental University in the United States
through distance learning in March 2004.

Mr.Yu has over 30 years of experience in E&M engineering services industry. His
experience includes project management, supervision and execution for various
E&M engineering services projects.

Mr.Yu is the father of Mr.Yu Ho Chi, an executive Director.

Mr. Lau Man Ching (13X &), aged 56, is the Chief Executive Officer and an
executive Director. He is also the director of all subsidiaries of the Company. He
joined the Group and became the sales and marketing manager of Shun Hing
HK in October 1995. He then became the director of Shun Hing HK in February
2000. He is primarily responsible for directing the overall management and
business operations of the Group. Mr. Lau is a director of Simply Grace Limited
(“Simply Grace"), which is a substantial Shareholder within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO and the controlling shareholder (as defined under the Listing
Rules).
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Lau obtained a master degree of business administration in management
from the Southeastern University in the United States through distance learning
in February 1996. He was awarded a diploma in management studies jointly
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University (formerly known as The Hong
Kong Polytechnic) and Hong Kong Management Association in Hong Kong in
September 1994. He was also awarded a higher diploma in building services
engineering from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University (formerly known as
The Hong Kong Polytechnic) in Hong Kong in November 1987. He is also the
authorised signatory and technical director in the category of registered specialist
contractor (sub-register of ventilation works), and the category of minor works
contractor type E (Classes Il and Ill) with the Buildings Department for Shun Hing
HK.

Mr. Lau has over 30 years in E&M engineering services industry. His experience
include business management, project management, supervision and execution
for various E&M engineering services projects.

Mr.Yu Ho Chi (BI7& % ), aged 33, was appointed as a non-executive Director on
27 June 2016 and a member of the Audit Committee on 6 December 2016. He
was re-designated from a non-executive Director to an executive Director with
effect from |3 January 2020 and ceased to be a member of the Audit Committee
then. MrYu Ho Chi is also the director of a subsidiary of the Company.

MrYu Ho Chi graduated from the University of Melbourne in Australia with a
bachelor degree of commerce in 2009. He has been a certified public accountant
under Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since March 2016. He
has been also a member of CPA Australia since July 2013,

Mr.Yu Ho Chi worked for a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange from January 2016 to September 2019 and his last position was
Deputy Head of Investment Department. He was employed by an international
accounting firm, in the assurance practice and advisory practice between 2010
and 2016.

Mr.Yu Ho Chi is the son of MrYu Cheung Choy, the Chairman, an executive
Director and a controlling Shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules).
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENSREEERE

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Lam Yim Nam (“Mr. Lam”) (#k# ), aged 70, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 6 December 2016. He is also the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of each of the Audit
Committee and the Nomination Committee.

Mr. Lam obtained a master degree in business administration from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong in Hong Kong in December 1995. He also obtained
a bachelor degree of business administration with honours from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong in Hong Kong in July 1980.

Mr. Lam has held several positions in various banks. He has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director of Bank of Communications (Hong Kong)
Limited since December 2019. He was an independent director of Shenzhen
Rural Commercial Bank from May 2012 to May 2018. He was the deputy
chief executive of Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited from October 2001 to
April 2011, and was responsible for overseeing retail banking business. He also
held various positions in the group companies of Bank of China Group and
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited, from August 1980 to April 2011, and was
responsible for managing the business operations of the group companies.

Mr. Lam has been an honorary adviser of The Hong Kong Institute of Bankers
since 201 1. He was a visiting professor of the Vocational Training Council
from September 2011 to August 2015. He was an adjunct professor in the
department of finance of The Chinese University of Hong Kong from March
2011 to 28 February 2014. He was a member of Hong Kong Banking Industry
Training Advisory Committee from August 2010 to July 2012. He was a director
of Community Chest of Hong Kong from June 2006 to March 201 I. He was
a member of Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Advisory Committee from
April 2009 to March 201 I. He was a member of the Chongging Committee of
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference (FFEI A RBUAHE & E
EMZBE) from January 2008 to December 2012.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Lee Wing Kee (“Mr. Lee”) (ZEKE), aged 69, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 6 December 2016. He is also the
chairman of the Nomination Committee and member of each of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee.

Mr. Lee obtained a bachelor degree of science (engineering) (civil engineering)
from the Queen Mary College, University of London in the United Kingdom in
August 1976. He has been a member of the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers
in Hong Kong since August 983,

Mr. Lee joined Shui On Building Contractors Limited in April 1985 and held
various positions in the company. Among the various positions he held, he was
the deputy managing director of SOCAM Asset Management (HK) Limited
from July 2013 to June 2016. He was the deputy managing director of Shui On
Construction Company Limited from July 2013 to July 2014 and the executive
director of Shui On Construction Company Limited from October 2000 to June
2013. All of the above companies are subsidiaries of SOCAM Development
Limited, a company whose shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 983).

Mr. Lee was a member of the disciplinary board panel of the Commissioner
for Labour from March 2009 to February 2015. He was a member of the
Committee on Employees’ Compensation from January 2009 to December 2014.
He was the chairman of Construction Workers Qualification Committee of
Construction Workers Registration Authority from May 2006 to October 2010.
He was a council member of Hong Kong Construction Association from April
2003 to June 2016, the vice president of Hong Kong Construction Association
from 2005 to 2013 and the chairman of the building committee of Hong Kong
Construction Association from 2005 to 2013 respectively. He was a member
of Construction Workers Registration Authority of Environment, Transport and
Works Bureau from October 2004 to October 2010. He was a member of
Building Subcommittee of Land and Building Advisory Committee from April
2003 to March 2007 and a member of Construction Industry Training Authority
from September 2003 to May 2007. He was the deputy honorary treasurer of
The Hong Kong Construction Association, Ltd., the chairman of the Training Sub-
committee and the vice chairman of the Training, Health and Safety Committee
of The Hong Kong Construction Association Ltd. from 2003 to 2005 respectively.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENSREEERE

Dr. Law Man Wah (“Dr. Law”) (X ), aged 70, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on | November 2019. He is also the
chairman of the Audit Committee and member of each of the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee.

Dr. Law graduated from The Chinese University of Hong Kong with a bachelor
degree of business administration in October 1975 and obtained a master
degree in business administration from Brunel University (currently known
as Brunel University London), United Kingdom through distance learning in
May 1992, a master of science degree in finance from City University of Hong
Kong in November 1995 and a master of business (accounting) from Monash
University, Australia through distance learning in November 2000. In October
2011, he was conferred Doctor of Business Administration by The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University, major in finance and accounting. Dr. Law also holds various
professional qualifications, including Certified Management Accountant in United
States of America, Certified Banker and Certified Financial Management Planner
of the Hong Kong Institute of Bankers. He is also a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Directors and a member of its training committee. Moreover, Dr. Law
holds the International Certificate in Banking Risk and Regulation from the Global
Association of Risk Professionals.

Dr. Law has over 30 years' experience in the finance industry. He worked for
Nanyang Commercial Bank Ltd. (“NCB") from February 1983 to September
2001 and held various positions in NCB. He was the deputy general manager of
NCB from March 1992 to September 2001 and was responsible for accounting,
financial management, information technology, organisation and method, etc. He
was the director of NCB from August 1994 to April 2007. Dr. Law worked for
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited from October 2001 to October 2010 where
his last position held was head of financial management and general manager
of financial management department. He was involved in the restructuring and
listing of BOC Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited in 2001 and 2002. During his
terms of appointment in Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited, he was responsible
for accounting, financial compliance, budgeting preparation and control, etc. He
also served as director of BOCI-Prudential Trustee Limited from October 1999
to March 2009. Currently, Dr. Law is a member of examination moderation
committee of Hong Kong Institute of Bankers and a specialist of Hong Kong
Council for Accreditation of Academic & Vocational Quialifications.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Senior management

Mr. Wong Hoi Fung Mars (“Mr.Wong”) (E&l##), aged 51, is the director of
Shun Hing HK. He worked as project manager of our Group from 2003 to 2006,
re-joined our Group as general manager of Shun Hing HK in March 2020 and
was promoted to director of Shun Hing HK in April 2022. He has over 27 years
of experience in E&M engineering services industry. He is primarily responsible
for overseeing and managing project administration and business marketing,

Mr. Wong obtained a master degree of science in building services engineering
from The University of Hong Kong in December 2003. He obtained a bachelor
of engineering in mechanical engineering from The University of Hong Kong in
November 1995.

Mr.:Wong has been a chartered engineer of the Engineering Council since June
2004. He also has been a member of The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers
and the Institution of Mechanical Engineers since June 2004 and April 2004
respectively.

Mr. Lee Yui (ZE®), aged 50, is the project director of Shun Hing HK. He joined
our Group in October 2006 as project manager and was promoted to project
director in April 2016. He has over 26 years of experience in E&M engineering
services industry. He is primarily responsible for overseeing and managing project
administration and business marketing.

Mr. Lee Yui obtained a master degree of science in engineering (mechanical
engineering) from The University of Hong Kong in November 2001. He
obtained a bachelor of engineering in mechanical engineering from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University (formerly known as The Hong Kong Polytechnic)
in November 1994. He obtained a higher diploma in mechanical engineering
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University (formerly known as The Hong Kong
Polytechnic) in October 1992.

Mr. Lee Yui has been a chartered engineer of the Engineering Council since
August 2003. He has been a member of The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers
since January 2016. He has been a fellow of the Institute of Plant Engineers in
the United Kingdom since February 2003. He is the authorised signatory in the
category of minor works contractors Types A and E (Classes Il and lll) with the
Buildings Department for Shun Hing HK. He is also a registered professional
engineer (mechanical) registered under the Engineers Registration Board since
June 2017. He has been a registered energy assessor of Electrical and Mechanical
Services Department since December 2018. He has also obtained Grade |
Plumber's Licence with the Water Supplies Department since January 2020.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENSREEERE

Mr. Lee Chun Mo (Z#&RE), aged 53, is the senior project manager of Shun Hing
HK. He joined our Group in March 2002 as project manager and was promoted
to senior project manager in April 2016. He has over 26 years of experience in
E&M engineering services industry. He is primarily responsible for overseeing and
managing project execution, operation and cost control matters.

Mr. Lee Chun Mo obtained a bachelor of engineering in building services
engineering with first class honours from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
in December 2005. He was awarded a higher certificate in mechanical
engineering from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University (formerly known as
The Hong Kong Polytechnic) in November 1991. He is also the authorised
signatory in the category of Ventilation Works, and the category of minor works
contractors Type E (Classes |, Il and [ll) with the Buildings Department for Shun
Hing HK.

Mr. Lee Foo Kwan (ZEE 1), aged 50, is the project manager of Shun Hing HK,
He joined our Group in July 2002 as a project engineer and was promoted
to project manager in April 2016. He has over 23 years of experience in E&M
engineering services industry. He is primarily responsible for overseeing tender
estimation and preparation, project execution, reviewing and controlling project
budgeting, coordinating with customers and other parties and carrying out design
and design verification works.

Mr. Lee Foo Kwan obtained a master degree of science in project management
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in October 2008. He obtained
a bachelor degree of engineering in mechanical engineering from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University in November 1996. He is currently a registered
professional engineer (mechanical) registered under the Engineers Registration
Board. He has been a member of The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers
since June 201 |, a member of The Institution of Mechanical Engineers in the
United Kingdom since January 201 |, a member of American Society of Heating,
Refrigerating and Air-conditioning Engineers, Inc. since January 2011 and a
member of the Chartered Institution of Building Services Engineers in Hong
Kong since October 201 |. He is also the authorised signatory in the category
of minor works contractors Types A and E (Classes Il and Ill) with the Buildings
Department for Shun Hing HK.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Chan Ho Kei (“Mr. Chan”) (BRJ&E), aged 35, is the financial controller of
our Group. He joined our Group in March 2016 as a financial controller. He
is primarily responsible for managing the financial operations and accounting
functions of our Group.

Mr. Chan obtained a bachelor degree in business administration (major in
professional accountancy) from The Chinese University of Hong Kong in July
2010.

Mr. Chan has over || years of experience in accounting and audit services. Prior
to joining our Group, he was employed by an international accounting firm as a
manager in the assurance department, and was responsible for providing audit
services. He has been a certified public accountant under Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants since January 2014. He has also been an associate
member of The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute (formerly known
as The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries) and The Chartered
Governance Institute since November 2019.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr.Tse Kam Fai (% #81€) aged 58, was appointed as the Company Secretary on
9 May 2016. MrTse is a fellow member of The Chartered Governance Institute
(formerly known as The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators)
and The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute (formerly known as The
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries). He is also a member of The Hong
Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. Tse is currently the company secretary of several
companies listed on the Main Board and GEM of the Stock Exchange. He is also
an executive director of a local professional firm providing regulatory compliance,
corporate governance and corporate secretarial services to listed and unlisted
corporations. Mr. Tse has more than 30 years' solid experience in handling listed
company secretarial and compliance related matters.
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Directors’ Report

ESHRE

The Directors are pleased to present the Board the annual report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in provision of E&M engineering services in Hong Kong.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group for the Year and a discussion on the
Group's future business development, and also the Group’s performance during
the Year are provided in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” respectively from pages 4 to 6 and pages
7 to |3 of this annual report.

At the meeting of the Board held on 4 May 2022, the Board has declared a
special interim dividend (the “Special Interim Dividend”) of HK3.5 cents per
share of the Company, amounting to HK$ 4.0 million in total. The Special Interim
Dividend will be payable on Thursday, 28 July 2022 to the Shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company on Monday, 4 July
2022. Save as disclosed, no important event affecting the Group has occurred
since the end of the Year.

The details of key performance indicators are shown in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 7 to |3 of this annual report.

The environmental policies and performance, compliance with relevant laws and
regulations and relationships with employees are discussed in the Environmental,
Social and Governance Report (“ESG Report”) which is published on the Stock
Exchange's website and the Company's website.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

There are certain risks involved in the Group’s operations, many of which are
beyond the Group’s control, including but not limited to those relating to the
business and the industry. Some of the major risks the Group facing include the
following:

. the gross profit margin depends on the tender price of each project,

which in turn is based on the estimated costs and time to be involved,
and will be affected by fluctuation in raw material and equipment price;
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. the Group operates in a competitive E&M engineering services industry.
Elevated competition with market participants may lead to lower profit
margins and loss of market share;

. difficulty in hiring new staff timely for the growth of our business
scale, particularly in the middle to senior level positions, due to keen
competition in the labor market;

. dependance on the quality and labour force of our subcontractors to
carry out our projects in a timely manner and with decent quality; and

. unfavorable change in project timeline may cause matters such as difficulty
in man-power planning and unexpected additional costs and time, which
may adversely affect the Group's operation and financial performance.

Environmental Policy and Performance

The ESG Report of the Company for the Year contained the information
required under Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules is published on the Stock
Exchange's website and the Company’s website.

Compliance with the Relevant Laws and Regulations

During the Year, as far as the Board and management are aware, there was no
material breach of or non-compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by
the Group that has a significant impact on the businesses and operation of the
Group.

Further discussion on the compliance with the relevant laws and regulations
are also contained in ESG Report which is published on the Stock Exchange’s
website and the Company's website.

Key Relationships with Employees, Customers and Suppliers

The Group recognises that employees are one of the significant assets of
the Group. The Group aims to continue establishing a caring environment to
employees and emphasis the personal development of its employees.

The Group maintains a good relationship with its customers and suppliers. The
Group aims to continue providing quality services and consumption experiences
to its customers and establishing cooperation strategy with its suppliers.

Further discussion on the key relationships with employees, customers and
suppliers are also contained in ESG Report which is published on the Stock
Exchange's website and the Company's website.
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Directors’ Report
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page 63.

The Board recommend the payment of a final dividend of HKI.0 cent per
ordinary share for the year ended 31 March 2022 to be payable to the
Shareholders on Friday, |6 September 2022 to those Shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members on Thursday, | September 2022. The payment
of final dividend is subject to the approval of the Shareholders at the 2022 AGM
to be held on Thursday, 25 August 2022.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining the identity of the Shareholders entitled to
attend and vote at the 2022 AGM, the register of members of the Company will
be closed from Friday, 19 August 2022 to Thursday, 25 August 2022, both days
inclusive, during the period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to be
eligible to attend and vote at the 2022 AGM, all transfer of shares accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited
at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong (and such
address will be changed to |7/F Far East Finance Centre, |6 Harcourt Road,
Hong Kong with effect from 15 August 2022) for registration not later than 4:30
p.m.on Thursday, |8 August 2022.

For the purpose of determining the entitlement of the Shareholders to the
proposed final dividend, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from Wednesday, 31 August 2022 to Thursday, | September 2022, both days
inclusive, during the period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order
to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all transfer of shares accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited
at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong (and such
address will be changed to |7/F, Far East Finance Centre, |6 Harcourt Road,
Hong Kong with effect from 15 August 2022) for registration not later than 4:30
p.m. on Tuesday, 30 August 2022.
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PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during the Year in the property and equipment of the
Group are set out in Note |3 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2022, the Company's reserves available for distribution to the
Shareholders amounted to approximately HK$102,359,000.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital are set out in Note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements. There was no movement in the Company’s share capital during the
Year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of Association
or the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the Company
was incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a
pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

RELIEF OF TAXATION

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the shares of the Company.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company'’s listed securities during the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for Directors’
and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its Directors and senior
management arising out of corporate activities. The permitted indemnity provision
is in force for the benefit of the Directors as required by section 470 of the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “Companies
Ordinance”) when the Report of the Board of the Directors prepared by the
Directors is approved in accordance with section 391(l) (a) of the Companies
Ordinance.

GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last
five financial years is set out on pages |39 to 140 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS

The list of Directors of the Company during the Year and up to the date of this
annual report is set out below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yu Cheung Choy (Chairman)
Mr. Lau Man Ching (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Yu Ho Chi

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lam Yim Nam
Mr. Lee Wing Kee
Dr. Law Man Wah

In accordance with article 84(1) of the Articles of Association, Mr.Yu Ho Chi and
Mr. Lam Yim Nam will retire by rotation at the 2022 AGM and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the 2022 AGM.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of MrYu Cheung Choy and Mr. Lau Man Ching, being executive Directors,
has renewed his service agreement with the Company for a term of three years
commencing on 3 January 2020. Either party has the right to terminate the
service agreement by giving not less than six months’ written notice to the other

party.

MrYu Ho Chi, being an executive Director, has entered into a service agreement
with the Company for a term of three years commencing on |3 January 2020.
Either party has the right to terminate the service agreement by giving not less
than six months’ written notice to the other party.

Each of Mr. Lam Yim Nam and Mr. Lee Wing Kee, being independent
non-executive Directors, has renewed his letter of appointment with the
Company for a term of three years commencing on 3 January 2020. Either party
has the right to terminate the letter of appointment by giving not less than three
months’ written notice to the other party.
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Dr. Law Man Wah, being independent non-executive Director, has entered into a
letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three years commencing
on | November 2019. Either party has the right to terminate the letter of
appointment by giving not less than three months’ written notice to the other

party.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the 2022 AGM has
a service contract with the Company which is not determinable within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions undertaken by the Group are set out
in Note 28 to the consolidated financial statements. The Directors consider that
those related party transactions did not fall under the definition of “connected
transaction” or “continuing connected transaction” in Chapter [4A of the Listing
Rules which are required to comply with any of the reporting, announcement
or independent shareholders’ approval requirements under the Listing Rules.
The Group has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, a confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers that all of the independent non-executive
Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangements to enable the Directors or their associates to acquire benefits
by means of acquisition of shares in or debentures of, the Company or in any
other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No significant transaction, arrangements and contracts of significance in relation
to the Group's business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was
a party, and in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly subsisted at 3| March 2022 or at any time during the Year.

CONTRACTSWITH CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

No contract of significance was entered into between the Group, or any of its
subsidiaries, and any of the controlling Shareholders or any of their subsidiaries
during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

EERESTBRAERKRMO R EERD
MRS ROK A

As at 31 March 2022, the interests or short positions of the Directors and chief RZZFEZZF=A=+—H EFFEKRK
executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of A Bl m 1T A B R AR &) 3 (F ] #HE
the Company or any associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of  JAE (FE& RE 7 K EIERHIE XV EL) &Y
the SFO) which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant {5 ~ AR D RE#EEZEF - HERE
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions B RBAEGRPIEXVERSET7 &8 HERA
which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), MERRRREZM(BEREREES
or which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in NEREEDIHZF R R EENR B
the register referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant to the Model B KRR ) ERSORE - HIRE

Code, are set out below:

5 M ERE 5P 58 352 IR7AE R I& DI
s oM RIORR » HIRBIRE
STRIGRERVESIOAR T ¢

Approximate
percentage of
Number of the issued share
shares/ capital of
underlying the Company
Long position/ shares held FriEA&AR
Name of Directors Capacity Short position it/ ERTRA Notes
BEHR af #e/ KR HEROHE BRES (13
Yu Cheung Choy Interests held jointly with another Long position 246,000,000 61.50 [3
AR At person/Interest of controlled e
corporations
Br—BALHRERAR
s/ REEER
Lau Man Ching Interests held jointly with another Long position 54,000,000 13.50 23
ANFE person/Interest of controlled HE
corporations
BR—BALHRERER
s/ REERR
Notes: BEE -

Theses 246,000,000 shares of the Company are held through Prosperously Legend, which is wholly-
owned by Mr.Yu.

#Z 246000000/ A~ 2~ A B 5 Ty & B
Prosperously Legend#§ 7% - ifi Prosperously
Legend HBICAEZEHER ©

2. Theses 54,000,000 shares of the Company are held through Simply Grace, which is wholly-owned 2. % % 54,000,000 % 748 2 &) B 5 T5 3% 18 Simply
by Mr: Lau. Grace#H » MSimply Grace B £ 2B A -
3. On 7 July 2016, Mr:Yu Cheung Choy and Mr. Lau Man Ching entered into the acting-in-concert 3. RZT—A"FLtAER  aRMTEREXE
confirmation, whereby they confirmed that, among other things, since 21 July 2004, they have been EEFTU—BATHERE Bt BEER

actively cooperating with one another and acting in concert, with an aim to achieving consensus and

(Bl B —ZTNFLA-+—Ak &

concerted action on all operating and financing decisions and major affairs relating to each member E—EHEBRAIER—BTY  BERER

company within the Group.
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, or chief executives of the
Company or their associates had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations as defined in Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the register to be
kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code as at 31 March 2022.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2022, the register of substantial shareholders maintained by
the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO shows that, other than the
interests of the Directors and the chief executives of the Company, the following
Shareholders had notified the Company of relevant interests or short position in
shares and underlying shares of Company as follows:
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Approximate
percentage of
Number of the issued share
shares/ capital of
underlying the Company
Long position/ shares held FEARAT
Name Capacity Short position it/ ERTRE Notes
£ af R/ KR RBROHE BHESH (i3
Prosperously Legend Beneficial owner Long position 246,000,000 61.50
BEREAA R
Simply Grace Beneficial owner Long position 54,000,000 13.50 2
EaBAA iR
Notes: HiE

Prosperously Legend is wholly-owned by Mr.Yu Cheung Choy.

2. Simply Grace is wholly-owned by Mr. Lau Man Ching.

Save as disclosed above, no other parties were recorded in the register of the
Company required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO as having interests
or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as at

31 March 2022.

Prosperously Legend AT RAT e - 2 EHEA ©

2. Simply Grace HEIX B R EZEHR °

B EXFEBESN  R-E=—F= A
=+—8 AAARREESRHEKE
125 336 WefRApey B Mo - i aRgR
fio A £ AR 2 B0 R 15 51 AR B R4 o 9
BRSLAR -
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by the Directors. Having made specific enquiry of all
Directors, the Company confirmed that all Directors have complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code during the Year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme")
pursuant to the written resolutions of the then shareholders passed on 6
December 2016. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the
Group to grant options to full time or part time employee, Directors (including
executive, non-executive or independent non-executive Directors), any supplier;
any customer, any service provider, any Shareholder, any adviser or consultant of
the Group as incentives or rewards for their contribution to the Group.

The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are summarised as follows:

(I)  The total number of Shares which may be allotted and issued upon
exercise of all options (excluding, for this purpose, options which have
lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme of the Group) to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Group must
not in aggregate exceed 0% of the Shares in issue at the time dealings in
the Shares first commence on the Stock Exchange, i.e. 40,000,000 Shares,
unless separate shareholders’ approval has been obtained, and which
must not exceed 30% of the share capital of the Company in issue from
time to time.

As at the date of this report, the total number of shares available for issue
under the Share Option Scheme is 40,000,000 Shares, which represents
10% of the issued Shares as at the date of this report.

(2) The total number of Shares issued and which may fall to be issued upon
exercise of the options and the options granted under any other share
option scheme of the Group (including both exercised or outstanding
options) to each grantee in any |2-month period shall not exceed 1% of
the issued share capital of the Company for the time being.
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)

)

®)

(©)

The subscription price in respect of any option shall be at the discretion
of the Directors, provided that it shall not be less than the highest of:

(@) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotations sheet for trade in one or more board lots of the
Shares on the offer date;

(b)  the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the offer date; and

(©) the nominal value of the Share.

an option may (and may only) be exercised by the grantee at any time or
times during the option period (which shall not be more than 10 years
from the offer date of that option) to be determined and notified by the
Directors to the grantee.

HK$1.00 shall be paid by the grantee to the Company be way of
consideration for the grant.

the Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective until the close of
business on the date falling on the last day of the period of ten (10) years
after the adoption date, i.e. 6 December 201 6.

Other details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in the prospectus of the
Company dated 19 December 2016.

No share option has been granted by the Company under the Share Option
Scheme since its adoption and up to the date of this annual report.
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS

Mr.Yu Cheung Choy, Mr. Lau Man Ching, Prosperously Legend and Simply Grace
(together, the “Covenantors™) have entered into the deed of non-competition
on 6 December 2016 (the “Deed of Non-Competition Undertaking”) in favour
of the Company (for itself and as trustee for each of its subsidiaries from time to
time), under which each of the Covenantors has jointly and severally undertaken
to the Company that he/it shall not, and shall procure that none of their
respective close associates (other than members of the Group) shall, during the
period that (a) the Shares remain listed on the Stock Exchange; and (b) either the
Covenantors and their respective close associates (other than members of the
Group), individually or jointly, are entitled to exercise, or control the exercise of,
not less than 30% of the voting power at general meetings of the Company; or (c)
any of the Covenantors or their respective close associates remains as a director
of any member of the Group, directly or indirectly, either on their own account,
in conjunction with, on behalf of, or through any person, firm or company, among
other things, carry on, participate or be interested, engaged or otherwise involved
in or acquire or hold (in each case whether as a shareholder, partner, agent or
otherwise and whether for profit, reward or otherwise) any business that directly
or indirectly be involved in or any business that directly or indirectly competes, or
may compete, with the business of the Group or undertaking and any other new
business which the Group may undertake from time to time after the listing of
the Shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

The Covenantors have confirmed to the Company the compliance with
the terms of Deed of Non-Competition Undertaking during the Year. The
independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the annual declarations and
made reasonable enquiry and confirmed the compliance with the terms of Deed
of Non-Competition Undertaking by the Covenantors during the Year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as those disclosed in the section headed "“Share Option Scheme” in this
Directors’ Report and also Note 34 to the consolidated financial statements, no
other equity-linked agreement was entered into by the Group, or existed during
the Year.
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SUBSIDIARIES

Details of subsidiaries of the Company as at 3| March 2022 are set out in Note
36 to the consolidated financial statements.

BANKING FACILITIES

As at 31 March 2022, the Group did not have any bank borrowings (2021:
Nil). As at 31 March 2022, the Group had a facility agreement entered into
with a bank with a facility limit of HK$150 million (2021: HK$80.0 million). The
Company had made undertakings relating to certain performance obligations
of the controlling Shareholders, namely Mr.Yu Cheung Choy and Mr. Lau Man
Ching, pursuant to the facility agreement including the following: (i) Mr.Yu and Mr.
Lau undertake to maintain as the largest shareholders of the Company directly
or indirectly; and (i) MrYu and Mr. Lau shall remain as the chairman or director
of the Company. The facility agreement remains effective as at the date of this
annual report.

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had another facility agreement entered into
with a bank with a facility limit of approximately HK$90.2 million (202 1: HK$6 1.4
million) with the following obligations undertaken by the Group: (i) In case of
Mr.Yu and Mr. Lau are not the major shareholders of the Company, the Group
should notify the bank 14 days in advance; and (ii) In case of MrYu is not entitled
to be chairman of the Company, the Group should notify the bank 14 days in
advance.

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had another facility agreement entered into
with a bank with a facility limit of HK$80.0 million (202 1: HK$80.0 million) with
the following obligations undertaken by the Group: (i) In case of MrYu and Mr
Lau are not the major shareholders of the Company, the Group should notify the
bank 14 days in advance; and (ii) In case of MrYu and Mr. Lau are not entitled to
be chairman or director of the Company, the Group should notify the bank 14
days in advance.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the percentage of revenue attributable to the largest customer
and the five largest customers of the Group accounted for approximately 22.2%
and 70.7% of the Group's total revenue respectively.

During the Year, the largest supplier and the five largest suppliers of the Group
accounted for approximately 5.7% and 10.8% of the total direct costs of the
Group respectively.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any other Shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company's share
capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or customers noted above.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The remuneration offered to the employees of the Group generally includes
salaries, medical benefits and bonus. In general, the Group determines salaries
of its employees based on each employee’s qualifications, position and seniority.
The Group will review its remuneration package annually. The Group provides
a defined contribution to the Mandatory Provident Fund as required under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) for the eligible employees in Hong Kong.

On 6 December 2016, the Company had adopted the Share Option Scheme
under which full time or part time employees, including Directors, of the
Company and its subsidiaries, might be granted options to subscribe for the
Company's ordinary shares.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Details of the remuneration of the Directors for the Year are set out in Note 6
to the consolidated financial statements.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a sufficient public float
as required under the Listing Rules during the Year and up to the date of this
annual report.
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DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.51B(1)OF THE LISTING RULES

Changes in Director’s information since the date of the 2021-22 interim report
of the Company is set out below:

. Director’s remuneration of MrYu has been revised to HK$2,700,000 per
annum with effect from | April 2022;

. Director's remuneration of Mr. Lau has been revised to HK$2,258,400
per annum with effect from | April 2022; and

. Director's remuneration of Mr.Yu Ho Chi, an executive Director; has been
revised to HK$ 1,680,000 per annum with effect from | April 2022.

Save as disclosed above, as at the date hereof, there were no substantial changes
to the Directors’ information required to be disclosed pursuant to Rules
I3.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an Audit Committee on 6 December 2016 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The primary duties
and roles of the Audit Committee include, but are not limited to, (a) making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal
of the external auditor, approving the remuneration and terms of engagement
of the external auditor; and any questions of its resignation or dismissal; (b)
monitoring integrity of financial statements and annual report and accounts,
halfyear report and, if prepared for publication, quarterly reports, and reviewing
significant financial reporting judgments contained in them; and (c) reviewing the
financial controls, risk management and internal control systems.
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The Audit Committee currently consists of three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Dr. Law Man Wah (as chairman), Mr. LamYim Nam and Mr. Lee
Wing Kee. The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2022.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 were
audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu whose term of office will expire upon the
conclusion of the 2022 AGM. A resolution for the re-appointment of Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company for the subsequent year is to be
proposed at the 2022 AGM.

By order of the Board
SH Group (Holdings) Limited
Yu Cheung Choy
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 June 2022
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Deloitte

To the Members of SH Group (Holdings) Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of SH Group (Holdings)
Limited (the “Company") and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the
Group”) set out on pages 63 to |38, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 March 2022, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2022 and of
its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA™) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

BREXEE

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were FAREAFESREBERMANEZHE -

of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the RRHAPEEMBRENET TR
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the BEEZMERIE GEFHEIAERMEE
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, ~ B4R &M BHEA KL A E RRNHEITERE

and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters

BEFEXEE

B BT R ELERIERERNE
ﬁl o

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

FREMTREZTEERRERERZAR

Revenue recognition for engineering service contracts

TRERBA MR

We identified the recognition of revenue for engineering service
contracts as a key audit matter due to the use of judgement and
estimates by management in determining the stage of completion
and the budget costs of engineering service contracts in progress.
BHAERRIIEREANRAEISBREZEZE  RA
REEENBE T IRERMETHT IERKAONTAERX
ZN:SEEE S e bl DN

The contract revenue generated from engineering service
contracts amounting to HK$753,327,000 was recognised in the
profit or loss during the year ended 31 March 2022.
TRRBRBENEENENOKET753327000 B TREE-Z
=A==+ RIFERRER -
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Our procedures in relation to the revenue recognition for
engineering service contracts included:

B TR A MRz 815

. understanding and evaluating management's process
in estimation of the contract revenue, budget cost and
determination of completion status of the engineering
service contracts;

THREFEEEEG AR  BERANRE
EILRERBA )T TARENRIE |

. agreeing the total contract value to the contracts
and variation orders (if any), agreements or other
correspondence, on a sample basis;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Contd)

Key audit matters

BEFEXEE

Independent Auditor’s Report

B XA

BRELEE(E)

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

FREMTREGTEERRERERZAR

The Group recognised contract revenue by reference to the stage
of completion of the contract activity using the input method
at the end of each reporting period. As set out in note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements, the management exercises
judgements in estimating the total contract costs, which are
prepared by the management on the basis of quotations from
time to time provided by the major subcontractors, suppliers

or vendors involved and the experience of the management.

Changes in estimates or the actual outcome will affect the
revenue to be recognised.

EEE2EZRERRERRAEZSENEHEH T I
BRHER AW - MAEAMBRRM 478 EEBD
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BEEMNKZRMER A2 BEREREFELSTHER
i E o

testing the contract costs recognised to date
by checking to supporting documents including
the certificates issued to the subcontractors,
invoices issued by suppliers /vendors and/or their
correspondences or other documents issued before
and subsequent to year end date to evaluate the
progress of the respective projects, on a sample basis;
and
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evaluating the reasonableness of percentage of
completion of engineering service contracts by
comparing the percentage calculated based on costs
incurred at the end of the reporting period against that
calculated based on external surveyors’ certifications,
and investigating any significant differences identified.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Contd)

Key audit matters

BEFEXER

BREKSEIE(Z)
How our audit addressed the key audit matters

FREMTREZTEERRERERZAR

Impairment assessment of trade receivables and contract assets

EZRUFEARENEERENG

We identified impairment assessment of trade receivables and
contract assets as a key audit matter due to the significance of
trade receivables and contract assets to the Group'’s consolidated
financial position and the involvement of subjective judgement and
management estimates in evaluating the expected credit losses
(“ECL") of the Group’s trade receivables and contract assets at
the end of the reporting period.

BB BRI E 5 RUGIA N A B ERER L RREREZ
FH RESESZRURERANEEY ESEGEAW
BARRNBRERA LR E EXERBEHREZEK
REMEBNEERREERR(BREEBRRDMFRE
B R ERE R o

As at 3| March 2022, the Group's trade receivables and contract
assets amounting to HK$34,019,000 and HK$ 136,144,000
respectively. As disclosed in note 30 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group reversed a net impairment loss
allowance of trade receivables of HK$40,000 and recognised a
net impairment loss allowance of contract assets of HK$7,000
respectively for the year and the Group’s lifetime ECL on trade
receivables and contract assets amounted to HK$163,000 and
HK$90,000 respectively as at 31 March 2022.
R-ZE_—_F=RA=+—H  BEEBEFREFTENELD
BED R 4340190008 7T K 136,144,000 7T © HANER & B
BRI 0AIKE - EEERFADHIEEE S RUGK
TRR (B B 15 1 5 7 F §E 40,0008 TT R R A A B ERE K18
BEBFE70008T MRZF__F=A=+—H" &
SENEZRUEFENSHEEEREMEEEHED IS
163,000 7% 7T £2 90,000 & JT °
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Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment of trade
receivables and contract assets included:
BPEEESREFELENEE ZRENGENREF
B

. Understanding key controls on how the management
estimates the impairment loss allowance for trade
receivables and contract assets;
THREEBEGTEDRBTRARENEE 2R
(BB IR B T 1O = R BRI

. Testing the accuracy of trade receivables ageing analysis
as at 31 March 2022, on a sample basis, by comparing
individual items in the analysis with the relevant sales
invoices;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Contd)

Key audit matters

BEFEXEE

Independent Auditor’s Report

B XA

BRELEE(E)

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

FREMTREGTEERRERERZAR

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements,

management of the Group estimates the amount of lifetime

ECL of trade receivables and contract assets individually.
The assessment is based on the internal credit ratings, ageing,

repayment history and/or past due status of the respective
customers. Estimated loss rates are based on historical observed
default rates over the expected life of the financial instruments
and are adjusted for forward-looking information.

HIER A MR T4PRE - EEBEREERIEF
BHRWTENRANEENEPAMEEFEDE - 714
DEREEREFHANBEETR - R - 8FEL R 3
BEAARAE - fAFHEE R AN @ i T AERFHBENE
SEEREHX - WRBAEEER TIAHAE -

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the annual report, but
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Challenging management’s basis and judgement in
determining impairment loss allowance on trade
receivables and contract assets as at 31 March
2022, including their identification of credit-impaired
balances, and the basis of estimated loss rates applied
to each customer (with reference to the historical
default rates and forward-looking information including
subsequent settlement pattern of each customer); and
KBEEEAEBEERN T -_—_F=A=1t—HEH
SR FIAR A KB ERREBRBUERFTRA
MEERHE - BRREHEEREARER
AREAREEPHMABREREE(K2ER
FRAORLAEEERBREEPNHREER
X)) R

Evaluating the disclosures regarding the impairment
assessment of trade receivables and contract assets in
note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.
AR A ME RN T 0 EEE S EWGIE R
EHEERBENEAEE
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In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our HEERMIE LA P IERROEFERT - B

responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to

report that fact. WWe have nothing to report in this regard.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
18 M B B R

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED WITH
GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group'’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes
our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
18 M B B R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd)

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit.We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
estimate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor’s
report is Hung Suk Fan.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

29 June 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
GEEBEREMEEBAR

For the year ended 3| March 2022
BE_T-__F-A=1+—HLFE

For the year ended 31 March

BE=ZA=1+—HLEE

2022 2021
—E-CF —E- 4
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
{5 THERT FET
Revenue Wz 5 753,327 707,590
Direct costs BHERA (707,728) (646,192)
Gross profit EA 45,599 61,398
Other income HAKA 7 2,890 10,238
Other gain and loss HAb Wz R Es1E 7 (7,474) 211
Net impairment losses (recognised) reversed TEE{E EEERIIE T (H#R) #E
under expected credit loss model B F R E R TR (1,338) 2,736
Administrative expenses TR 2 (23,964) (23,060)
Finance costs A 8 o1 (347)
Profit before taxation BR A AT A 9 15,622 51,176
Income tax expense FTEBIR X< 10 (3,889) (7,042)
Profit and total comprehensive income FREAREERAERE
for the year 11,733 ad | 341
Earnings per share BREF
Basic (HK cents) AR GBI Il 29 1.0
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e PR R

As at 31 March 2022
RZE-_—F=A=+—H

As at 3| March

R=A=+—8H
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—4F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BaE FHET FHET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property and equipment EIE S 13 19,093 20,311
Right-of-use assets EREEE 14 2,434 4,080
Deposits Be 16 2,960 2,755
Debt instruments at amortised cost BB AT BRI ER LA I8 4,715 6113
Financial assets at fair value through BN HER ABEE
profit or loss TRMEE 19 46,506 31,883
Deferred tax assets EETIAE = 24 64 6
75,772 65,148
Current assets REEE
Trade receivables B 5 RIEIE 15 34,019 88,834
Other receivables, deposits HEWsIa - e &
and prepayments TEfFRIE 16 9,593 6,404
Contract assets BREE |7 136,144 [ 10,950
Debt instruments at amortised cost BB AT BRMER TR 18 - 5,003
Tax recoverable AUk el F4 18 3,044 -
Bank balances and cash RITHEHREIRE 20 249,541 236,040
432,341 447231
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables B RN IE 21 53,941 61,265
Other payables and accrued charges Hi BN IBREAER 22 95,055 77,080
Contract liabilities BRAE 17 65,009 73,152
Lease liabilities HEAaE 23 2,307 2228
Tax payable JERTH I8 - 1,328
216,312 215,053
Net current assets RBEEFE 216,029 232,178
Total assets less current liabilities HEERBRBER 291,801 297,326
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e PR R

As at 31 March 2022
RZE-_—®#=A=+—H

As at 3| March

N=A=+—H
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—14F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B FBT FET
Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Provisions B 15 25 521 507
Lease liabilities HEaRE 23 444 2,116
965 2,623
Net assets BEFE 290,836 294,703
Capital and reserves BEAXRFE
Share capital AR 26 4,000 4,000
Reserves (Gt 286,836 290,703
Equity attributable to owners AAREE AELRER
of the Company 290,836 294,703

The consolidated financial statements on pages 63 to |38 were approved and

authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 June 2022 and are signed

on its behalf by:

FREIVEMNZRAVBEREN -
T TFERNA-tThBESESHERR
ETEE THTIEERRESSRE

Yu Cheung Choy
aRE
DIRECTOR
EE

Lau Man Ching
gIXE
DIRECTOR
EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes

mEERBER
For the year ended 3| March 2022
HE_Z-__F=A=+—-HILFE

in Equity

Share Share Other Retained
capital premium reserve™ profits Total
Hit
A Rt aE ) REER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAT TR TR TR
At 31 March 2020 RZTZTHF
SF=—FR 4,000 83223 5058 165,088 257369
Profit and total comprehensive income P& A &
for the year gL N - - - 44,134 44134
Dividends recognised as distribution HRRDRABRE
(Note 12) (BFaE 12) - - - (6,800) (6,800)
At 31 March 2021 RZF=—F
=ZR=+—H 4,000 83223 5,058 202422 294,703
Profit and total comprehensive income P& H &%
for the year gL N - - - 11,733 [1,733
Dividends recognised as distribution ERRDRARE
(Note 12) (BtzE12) - - (15,600) (15,600)
At3I March 2022 RZFZZF
=ZR=+—H 4,000 83223 5058 198,555 290836

Note: Other reserve represents the aggregate amount of (i) reserve arising from the group reorganisation,

which mainly comprises issue of shares by Triumph Legend Ltd (“Triumph Legend”) to acquire

equity interests in Shun Hing E & M Engineering Limited (“Shun Hing HK") and issue of shares by

the Company to acquire equity interests in Triumph Legend and Blissful Choice Limited (“‘Blissful

Choice"); and (ii) HK$4,800,000 upon the waiver of amounts due to directors and credited as

deemed contributions from shareholders.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERERER

For the year ended 3| March 2022
BE_T-__F-A=1+—HLFE

For the year ended 31 March
BE=A=1t—-HLHEE

2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—14F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RS
Profit before taxation BRAT AT 15,622 51,176
Adjustments for: LA TR IgFEL -
Depreciation of property and equipment ¥ K& EITE 1,402 1,505
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEERE 2,161 2,460
Net impairment loss reversed on BHRWFTIAREHEE
trade receivables and contract assets B SR EER (33) (2,791)
Impairment loss recognised on debt 1R SHA AR BREY
instruments at amortised cost BB T EERRERE 1,371 55
Fair value loss (gain) on financial assets BRAVEFABENSHEE
at fair value through profit or loss ANERE (WE) 7,781 @11)
Bank interest income RITHBUA (18) (254)
Interest income on rental deposits MEZSFEWA (17) (27)
Interest income from debt instruments at 2K B IR # SR AN DI BR RO &5 T A
amortised cost B F B HA (659) (558)
Dividend income from insurance policy REREMREKA (56) (57)
Dividend income from financial assets KERAFEFTABR
at fair value through profit or loss TREENRIEA (1,991) (728)
Finance costs BB KA 9l 374
Operating cash flows before movements ~ ‘&iEB S E AL LR ME
in working capital 25,654 50,944
Decrease (increase) in trade receivables g 5 REWRIER D (3850) 54,855 (28,658)
(Increase) decrease in other receivables, HaEWRIE - ek
deposits and prepayments FERTRRIE (B8 ) m (3,088) 1,225
(Increase) decrease in contract assets BREE ()R (25,201) 23,042
(Decrease) increase in trade payables B S eI O ) 180 (7,324) 29,121
Increase in other payables and accrued LA AN R N e T B A AN
charges 17,975 8,881
(Decrease) increase in contract liabilities ABHEECHD)EM (8,143) 61,824
Increase (decrease) in provisions B mORs) 14 (67)
Cash generated from operations KEMERE 54,742 146,312
Income tax paid BTSSR (8,319) (7,470)
Net cash from operating activities RETHMEREFERN 46,423 138,842
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AN v~ —1
mERERER
For the year ended 3| March 2022
HE-_ZT-_—F=-A=+—HILFE

For the year ended 31 March

BE=ZA=1+—HLEE

2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REED
Bank interest income received BRI T S A 22 369
Interest income received from debt REREHEKATRNEF LA
instruments at amortised cost B E MR S A 697 534
Dividend received from financial assets RERAFERT AEZR
at fair value through profit or loss ERIEEMNDKARE 1,846 664
Purchase of debt instruments at amortised % B & # SHRK AP BRI ERF T A
cost - (9,220)
Redemption of debt instruments at FE (Bl 2 SH A AN T 1 BR A
amortised cost B TA 5,030 2,155
Purchase of financial assets at fair value BERATHEFAEENESREE
through profit or loss (23,405) (19,979)
Disposal of financial assets at fair value HERATEFABRNEREE
through profit or loss 1,001 -
Placement of deposits for acquisition BFR B MR ERRE
of property and equipment (176) -
Purchase of property and equipment BEMELRE (184) (244)
Rental deposit refund received ERHERESERK 58 21
Payment for rental deposits MERSK (29) (18)
Net cash used in investing activities RETEFMAREFHE (15,140) (25718)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEEE
Dividends paid 2fIRE (15,600) (6,800)
Interest paid AR ) (374)
Repayment of bank borrowings BERRITER - (6,816)
Repayment of lease liabilities BERAEaE (2,091) (2447)
Net cash used in financing activities RMEITBARESER (17,782) (16,437)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents BRERRESEBEYILINFE 13,501 96,687
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of ~ F ¥R & KIREEEY
the year 236,040 139,353
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FREERESZEEY
represented by bank balances and cash BIRTTEBRLES 249,541 236,040
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

SH Group (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”’) was incorporated and
registered as an exempted company with limited liability in the Cayman
Islands under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands on 9 May 2016.
The addresses of the Company's registered office and the principal place
of business in Hong Kong are Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO. Box
2681, Grand Cayman KYI-I111, Cayman Islands and Units 603-606,
6/F., Tower |, Cheung Sha Wan Plaza, 833 Cheung Sha Wan Road,
Kowloon, Hong Kong, respectively. Its immediate and ultimate holding
company is Prosperously Legend Limited (“Prosperously Legend"), which
was incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI") and wholly owned
by MrYu Cheung Choy (“MrYu"), who is also the chairman of the board
(the “Board”) of directors and executive director of the Company. The
Company's shares have been listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 3 January
2017.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 36.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar
("HK$"), which is also the functional currency of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”).

e PR R M

For the year ended 3| March 2022
BE_T-__F-A=1+—HLFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

For the year ended 3| March 2022
BE_ZT-__F=-A=+—HLFE

70

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the current
year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") for the first time, which are mandatorily effective for the
annual periods beginning on or after | April 2021 for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements:

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond

30 June 2021

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,

HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

In addition, the Group applied the agenda decision of the IFRS
Interpretations Committee (the "Committee") of the International
Accounting Standards Board issued in June 2021 which clarified the costs
an entity should include as "estimated costs necessary to make the sale"
when determining the net realisable value of inventories.

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current year
has had no material impact on the Group's financial positions and
performance for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set
out in these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R M

For the year ended 3| March 2022
BE_T-__F-A=1+—HLFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG 2.
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Contd)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

BRI BB BREER (B8
BATSRAE R ) RS ETAS (4
B 8 45 L1 o 4 3% 40 37 5T 5 38 Bt
B A R E ST &

7 42 B 3 1R 5 4B A LA T B 8 4
(B 145K O BT ET BB B TS S

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments to
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

R REBETA
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and the related BB RE LA Rig s # K%
Amendments® F175% HBEETA
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework? BBUHREER S| ABEIESR?
F35(BITX)
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between BB RE LR REEREKE
and HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture' Z 0 RBBSR ARKEE
EHFBHEUEITAR)  RAElZEN
BEHNEL
N
Amendments to HKAS | Classification of Liabilities as Current or BREHEANE IR BEIEARY
Non-current and related amendments to (fB5TA) FIERE R
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)° BN
£ 55
EHEN
(ZZ2ZF)
Amendments to HKAS | and Disclosure of Accounting Policies’ B ERNE |5 SHBR RE
HKFRS Practice Statement 2 REBRBRE
ERIERZER
F25% (B3TK)
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates’ BRGERIESH g ER’
CEHEN)
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and BREHENE 2% E-RZELEN
Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction’ (B3I AR) BERARMN
HRREEHIE?
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment - Proceeds EREHENE 6% UF BER
before Intended Use? CCHEN) &tE-HE
RgAlZ
FRS3IR?
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling BAGHENEIR  BRAN-ET
a Contract? CCHEN BHZBHA?
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018 - 20202 BB RE %R ERMBRELE
(BETAK) BT N\F
Emk St 222
L FE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R R TR

For the year ended 3| March 2022
BE_ZT-__F=-A=+—HLFE

72

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Contd)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (Contd)
¢ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined

] Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2022

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2023

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs mentioned below, the
directors of the Company anticipate that the application of all other
new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.

Amendments to HKAS 37 "Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract"

The amendments specify that, when an entity assesses whether a
contract is onerous in accordance with HKAS 37 "Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets" ("HKAS 37"), the unavoidable costs
under the contract should reflect the least net cost of exiting from
the contract, which is the lower of the cost of fulfilling it and any
compensation or penalties arising from failure to fulfil it. Costs of fulfilling
the contract include incremental costs and an allocation of other costs
that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (for example, an allocation of the
depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used in
fulfilling the contract).

The amendments are applicable to contracts for which the Group has
not yet fulfilled all its obligations as at the date of initial application.
Specifically, the amendments are applicable to the Group's assessment of
onerous contracts in relation to outstanding unfulfilled engineering service
contracts.

The directors of the Company are in the process of assessing the impact
on the application of amendments to HKAS 37 in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments that are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period (as explained
in the accounting policies below) and in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA. For the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements, information is considered material if such information
is reasonably expected to influence decisions made by primary users.
In addition, the consolidated financial statements include the applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The directors of the Company have, at the time of approving the
consolidated financial statements, a reasonable expectation that the
Group has adequate resources to continue its operational existence for
the foreseeable future. Thus, they continue to adopt the going concern
basis of accounting in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods and services.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Contd)

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements (Contd)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at
the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”, leasing transactions that are
accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16 “Leases” and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36
“Impairment of Assets".

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are
categorised into Level |, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described
as follows:

. Level | inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within
Level I, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Contd)

Significant accounting policies

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements
of the Company and entities controlled by the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

. has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee; and

. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the date the
Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group's
accounting policies.

All'intra-group assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in
full on consolidation.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Contd)

Significant accounting policies (Contd)

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance obligation
is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good and service (or a bundle of
goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or services
that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over time by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria is met:

. the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group’s performance as the Group performs;

. the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the Group performs; or

. the Group's performance does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the customer
obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to consideration in
exchange for goods or services that the Group has transferred to a
customer that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment
in accordance with HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (“HKFRS 9”). In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group's unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required before payment of
that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to transfer goods or
services to a customer for which the Group has received consideration (or
an amount of consideration is due) from the customer.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Contd)

Significant accounting policies (Contd)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Contd)

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same contract are
accounted for and presented on a net basis.

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance obligation is
measured based on input method, which is to recognise revenue on the
basis of the Group's efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of a performance
obligation relative to the total expected inputs to the satisfaction of that
performance obligation, that best depict the Group’s performance in
transferring control of goods or services.

Variable consideration

For contracts that contain variable consideration, the Group estimates the
amount of consideration to which it will be entitled using the most likely
amount, which better predicts the amount of consideration to which the
Group will be entitled.

The estimated amount of variable consideration is included in the transaction
price only to the extent that it is highly probable that such an inclusion will
not result in a significant revenue reversal in the future when the uncertainty
associated with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group updates the estimated
transaction price (including updating its assessment of whether an
estimate of variable consideration is constrained) to represent faithfully
the circumstances present at the end of the reporting period and the
changes in circumstances during the reporting period.

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from business
combinations on or after the date of initial application, the Group
assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based on the definition
under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and
conditions of the contract are subsequently changed.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Contd)

Significant accounting policies (Contd)

Leases (Contd)

The Group as a lessee

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to leases
of office premises that have a lease term of |2 months or less from
the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option. Lease
payments on short-term leases are recognised as expense on a straight-
line basis or another systematic basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:
. the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

c any lease payments made at or before the commencement date,
less any lease incentives received;

. any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

. an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in dismantling
and removing the underlying assets, restoring the site on which
it is located or restoring the underlying asset to the condition
required by the terms and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the

shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item on the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Contd)

Significant accounting policies (Contd)

Leases (Contd)

The Group as a lessee (Contd)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS 9 and initially
measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and included in the cost of right-
of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises and
measures the lease liability at the present value of lease payments that are
unpaid at that date. In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by interest
accretion and lease payments.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Contd)

Significant accounting policies (Contd)

Leases (Contd)

Lease modifications

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate lease, the
Group remeasures the lease liability, less any lease incentives receivable,
based on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate at the effective date of the
modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities by making
corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-of-use asset.

Changes in the basis for determining the future lease payments as a
result of interest rate benchmark reform

For changes in the basis for determining the future lease payments
as a result of interest rate benchmark reform, the Group applies the
practical expedient to remeasure the lease liabilities by discounting the
revised lease payments using the unchanged discount rate and makes
a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets. A lease
modification is required by interest rate benchmark reform if, and only if,
both of these conditions are met:

. the modification is necessary as a direct consequence of interest
rate benchmark reform; and

. the new basis for determining the lease payments is economically
equivalent to the previous basis (i.e. the basis immediately
preceding the modification).

If lease modifications are made in addition to those lease modifications
required by interest rate benchmark reform, the Group applies the
applicable requirements in HKFRS 16 (see the accounting policy above)
to account for all lease modifications made at the same time, including
those required by interest rate benchmark reform.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Contd)

Significant accounting policies (Cont'd)

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are tangible assets that are held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes.
Property and equipment are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Ownership interests in leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of properties
which includes both leasehold land and building elements, the entire
consideration is allocated between the leasehold land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating
lease is presented as "right-of-use assets” in the consolidated statement
of financial position. When the consideration cannot be allocated reliably
between non-lease building element and undivided interest in the
underlying leasehold land, the entire properties are classified as property
and equipment.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of property and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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82

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Contd)

Significant accounting policies (Contd)

Impairment on property and equipment and right-of-use assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its property and equipment and right-of-use assets to
determine whether there is any indication that these assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of
the impairment loss (if any). The recoverable amount of property and
equipment and right-of-use assets are estimated individually. When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate assets are
allocated to the relevant cash-generating unit when a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be established, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which
a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be established. The
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit or group
of cash-generating units to which the corporate asset belongs, and is
compared with the carrying amount of the relevant cash-generating unit
or group of cash-generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Contd)

Significant accounting policies (Contd)

Impairment on property and equipbment and right-of-use assets (Cont'd)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
For corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which cannot be
allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating unit,
the Group compares the carrying amount of a group of cash-generating
units, including the carrying amounts of the corporate assets or portion
of corporate assets allocated to that group of cash-generating units,
with the recoverable amount of the group of cash-generating units. In
allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to
the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit or the group of cash-generating units. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair value less
costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and
zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit
or the group of cash-generating units. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset (or cash-generating unit or a group of cash-generating units) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-generating
units) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss immediately.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Contd)

Significant accounting policies (Contd)

Deposits in life insurance policies

Deposits in life insurance policies are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost adjusted for interest income and service
charges, less impairment losses, if any.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position when a group entity becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value
except for trade receivables arising from contracts with customers
which are initially measured in accordance with HKFRS 15 “Revenue from
Contracts with Customers”. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss ("FVTPL")) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of allocating interest
income and interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts and payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Contd)

Significant accounting policies (Contd)

Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective
is to collect contractual cash flows; and

. the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective
is achieved by both selling and collecting contractual cash flows;
and

. the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows

that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL, except
that initial recognition of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect
to present subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment in
other comprehensive income if that equity investment is neither held
for trading nor contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a
business combination to which HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations” applies.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 38

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Contd)

Significant accounting policies (Contd)

Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial assets (Contd)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (Cont'd)

A financial asset is held for trading if:

. it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the
near term; or

. on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group manages together and has a recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

. it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging
instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset that are
required to be measured at the amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured
at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch.

(i) Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method
for financial assets measured subsequently at amortised cost. For
financial instruments other than purchased or originated credit-
impaired financial assets, interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset, except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired (see below). For financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised
cost of the financial asset from the next reporting period. If the
credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument improves
so that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset from the beginning of
the reporting period following the determination that the asset is
no longer credit-impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Contd)

Significant accounting policies (Contd)

Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial assets (Contd)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (Cont'd)

(ii) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured
at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as FVTOCI are
measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial asset and is included in the “other gain and loss" line item.

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected credit
loss (“ECL") model on financial assets (including trade receivables, debt
instruments at amortised cost, other receivables and deposits and bank
balances) and contract assets which are subject to impairment assessment
under HKFRS 9.The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Contd)

Significant accounting policies (Contd)

Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial assets (Contd)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (Contd)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible default
events over the expected life of the relevant instrument. In contrast,
[2-month ECL (*12m ECL”) represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible within |2 months
after the reporting date. Assessment are done based on the Group's
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to
the debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of both the
current conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables and
contract assets. The ECL on these assets are assessed individually.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the impairment loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group recognises
lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognised is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a
default occurring since initial recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without undue cost
or effort.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Contd)

Significant accounting policies (Contd)

Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial assets (Contd)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (Contd)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (Contd)

In particular, the following information is taken into account when
assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

. significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread,
the credit default swap prices for the debtor; and

. existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations;

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

. an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of the
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor's
ability to meet its debt obligations.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Contd)

Significant accounting policies (Contd)

Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial assets (Contd)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (Contd)

()

Significant increase in credit risk (Contd)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition when contractual payments are more than 30
days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in credit risk
before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an
event of default occurs when information developed internally
or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
taking into account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default has
occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information
to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Contd)

Significant accounting policies (Contd)

Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial assets (Contd)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (Contd)

(iii) Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset
is credit-impaired includes observable data about the following
events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

(©) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the
lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)
Significant accounting policies (Contd)
Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial assets (Contd)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to impairment

assessment under HKFRS 9 (Contd)

(iv)  Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and
there is no realistic prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables,
when the amounts are over two years past due, whichever
occurs sooner: Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery procedures,
taking into account legal advice where appropriate. A write-off
constitutes a derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are

recognised in profit or loss.

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there
is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based on historical
data and forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined

with the respective risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract
and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted

at the effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Contd)

Significant accounting policies (Contd)

Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial assets (Contd)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (Contd)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL (Contd)

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit-impaired, in
which case interest income is calculated based on amortised cost
of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss
for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying amount,
with the exception of trade receivables and contract assets
where the corresponding adjustment is recognised through a loss
allowance account.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as
either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of
the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of a group entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the group entities are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities including trade payables and other payables
and accrued charges are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Contd)

Significant accounting policies (Contd)

Financial instruments (Contd)

Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights
to the cash flows from the asset expire. or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset
to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme") as
defined contribution plan are recognised as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and when employees
rendered the services. All short-term employee benefits are recognised
as an expense unless another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of
the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as wages
and salaries and annual leave) after deducting any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits
are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows
expected to be made by the Group in respect of services provided by
employees up to the reporting date. Any changes in the liabilities’ carrying
amounts resulting from service cost, interest and remeasurements are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that another HKFRS
requires or permits their inclusion in the cost of an asset.

SH GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED Annual Report 2021-22

REMBHRNVERELERE X
BRBE (&)

EXSRBER(E)
SHTAE)
RIEBATHEERTREE
EEEREEMELRSREN
BRENIHE  KEBEHE
ENBEBEEMAENBAED
Rk KB REET S BREE
AEETERILER - BATRE
?EO

REITEREREER  BEN
FHEEDKRRERRERNZ
B ZRN B R o

EEAEENRFDEET K
BB NEBT SR
ERERBE RIEERNSE
BENFEEEEHN RENKE
Z M EREIR PR o
BIKIEFIRA
EERE R EIMARFIER
Beatal((REer8])
DREERBRGEEBRES
HR B AR R FAST

FEHI R Rt R B E S 15 7
RHR BRI TAH L E 1R H
AR P ST AN BV 4R M B R 3T 3R & 5B
R FBERHEBENERR
it S -EEBMBREE
AR E LR RETABEK
REVE S RIERIN ©

BEBAN(WIERFEUANSE
R RHBE XRS5 &g
BAME -

RHESRMNBERANAERANE
BB EEWE AR HR
BRI EH BRI RIRIBEIR
HEIRERT 8 - ARBEAA - F
EhEHFEELNAGBREE
MEMESHNBRER - 5 —
BEBYHRELRRE L
R EFT AR EXRARIE ARSI -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Contd)

Significant accounting policies (Contd)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from profit before taxation as reported in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income because
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of each reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can
be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Contd)

Significant accounting policies (Contd)

Taxation (Contd)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part
of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of each reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of each reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing transactions in
which the Group recognises the right-of-use assets and the related lease
liabilities, the Group first determines whether the tax deductions are
attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are attributable to the
lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12 Income Taxes requirements
to the leasing transaction as a whole. Temporary differences relating to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are assessed on a net basis. Excess
of depreciation on right-of-use assets over the lease payments for the
principal portion of lease liabilities resulting in net deductible temporary
differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when they relate to income taxes levied to the same taxable entity
by the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Contd)

Significant accounting policies (Contd)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal
or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Group
will be required to settle the obligations, and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of
each reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. VWhen a provision is measured using the cash
flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time value of
money is material).

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on the settlement of monetary items, and on the
retranslation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Contd)

Significant accounting policies (Contd)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance
that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to them and
that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis
over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses the related
costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable. Such grants are presented under "other income”.
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4.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described
in note 3, the management is required to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimates is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of each reporting period
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets within the next financial year

Engineering service contracts

The Group reviews and revises the estimates of contract revenue,
contract costs, variation orders and contract claims prepared for each
engineering service contract as the contract progresses. Budgeted
engineering service costs are prepared by the management on the basis
of quotations from time to time provided by the major subcontractors,
suppliers or vendors involved and the experience of the management.
In order to keep the budget accurate and up-to-date, the management
conducts periodic reviews of the budgets of contracts by comparing
the budgeted amounts to the actual amounts incurred. Such significant
estimate may have impact on the profit or loss recognised in each period.
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4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Contd)
Engineering service contracts (Contd)

Recognised amounts of engineering service contract revenue and related
receivables reflect the management's best estimate of each contract’s
outcome and stage of completion, which are determined on the basis of
a number of estimates. This includes the assessment of the profitability
of on-going engineering service contracts. For more complex contracts
in particular, costs to complete and contract profitability are subject to
significant estimation uncertainty. Notwithstanding that the management
frequently reviews and revises the estimates of both the estimated
revenue and direct costs as the contracts progress, changes in estimates
or the actual outcome will affect the carrying amounts of contract assets/
liabilities with the corresponding adjustments to future revenue and/or
direct costs.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group recognised
contract revenue and contract costs amounted to HK$753,327,000
and HK$707,728,000 respectively (2021: HK$707,590,000 and
HK$646,192,000 respectively).

Impairment assessment on trade receivables and contract assets

ECL on trade receivables and contract assets are assessed individually.
The assessment is based on the internal credit ratings, ageing, repayment
history and/or past due status of the respective customers. Estimated loss
rates are based on historical observed default rates over the expected
life of the financial instruments and are adjusted for forward-looking
information. The loss allowance amount of the credit-impaired trade
receivables and contract assets is measured as the difference between the
asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows with the consideration of expected future credit losses.

At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are
reassessed and changes in the forward-looking information are
considered.

As at 3| March 2022, the trade receivables and contract assets
amounting to HK$34,019,000 and HK$136,144,000 respectively (2021:
HK$88,834,000 and HK$ 110,950,000 respectively).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Contd)

Impairment assessment on trade receivables and contract assets (Contd)

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The information
about the ECL, the Group’s trade receivables and contract assets are
disclosed in notes 30, |5 and 17, respectively.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
Revenue

Revenue represents the fair value of amounts received or receivable
arising from the engineering service contracts of the Group from external
customers. The Group's revenue was solely derived from electrical and
mechanical engineering (“E&M engineering”) services with the focus on
the supply, installation and maintenance of mechanical ventilation and
airconditioning system (“MVAC system’) and low voltage electrical system
in Hong Kong during the years ended 3| March 2022 and 2021. Such
services are recognised as a performance obligation satisfied over time
as the Group creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as
the asset is created or enhanced. Revenue is recognised for these services
based on the stage of completion of the contract using input method.
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(i) Disaggregation of revenue () Weas 745
For the year ended 31 March
BE=A=t—HL%HE
2022 2021
=L e T —E—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET BT
Type of services AR AR
— Supply, installation and —HE  TER
maintenance of MVAC system HIERBCRRE 2= A F AT 635,532 573,885
— Supply, installation and — HE - R REBERE
maintenance of low voltage BERES
electrical system 117,795 133,705
753,327 707,590

The revenue recognised for the years ended 31 March 2022 and
2021 was mainly from private sector projects.
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5.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd)
Revenue (Contd)

(ii) Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligation
for contracts with customers

The transaction price allocated to the remaining performance
obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at 31 March
2022 amounting to approximately HK$2,107,749,000 (2021:
HK$1,968,501,000). Based on the information available to the
Group at the end of the reporting period, management expects
that the remaining performance obligations will be recognised as
revenue during the years ending 31 March 2023 to 2025 (2021:
31 March 2022 to 2024).

Segment information

For the purpose of resources allocation and performance assessment, the
executive directors of the Company, being the chief operating decision
maker, review the overall results and financial position of the Group as
a whole. Accordingly, the Group has only one single operating segment
and only entity-wide disclosures, major customers and geographical
information are presented.

Geographical information

The Group's revenue are all derived from Hong Kong based on the
location of services delivered and the Group's property and equipment
and right-of-use assets amounting to HK$2 1,527,000 as at 31 March 2022
(2021: HK$24,391,000) are all located in Hong Kong by physical location
of assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 3| March 2022
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd) 5. WHEROHER(E)
Information about major customers EFREXEEFHNESR
Revenue attributed from customers that accounted for 0% or more of RERIR BG4 E B W 4EEE 10%
the Group's total revenue during the years is as follows: FIA LR EP R -
For the year ended 31 March
BHE=A=t—-HLFE
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET TATT
Customer A EPA 167,213 84,080
Customer B =FB 159,216 234,049
Customer C ®PC 79,504 106,916
DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS 6. EEkEEME
(@) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (@) ESRESTHRABHME
During the years ended 3| March 2022 and 2021, the REBE_Z__FK_F
emoluments paid or payable by the entities now comprising the ——H=A=+—HI#F
Group to the directors and chief executive of the Company were B AEBFEKETER
as follows: MARREEFRFEFEITH
A B EN N B 2 40
T
Salaries Retirement
and benefit
Directors’ other Discretionary scheme
fees benefits bonus  contributions Total
‘ F2R BT )
EsHe  HeafN BRREA SEER A5t
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TET TET TR FET T
For the year ended BE-2-=F
31 March 2022 ZA=+-HLEE
Executive Directors HITES
Yu Cheung Choy (note i) Bt (fati) - 2,621 655 18 3294
Lau Man Ching (notes i and iii)  2I3¢ (KfzEi Riii) - 2,192 548 18 2,758
Yu Ho Chi (note i) AR () - 1,648 206 18 1,872
Independent BUFHTES
Non-Executive Directors
Lam Yim Nam (note i AR (et 156 - - - 156
Law Man Wah (note ii) BOCE (i) 156 - - - 156
Lee Wing Kee (note i) oA (Ftatin) 156 - - - 156
468 6,461 1,409 54 8,392
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For the year ended 3| March 2022
BE_ZT-__F=-A=+—HLFE

6.  DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Contd) 6. EBREEME(E)
(@)  Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (Cont'd) (2) EERESTHRABNME
(%)
Retirement
benefit
Directors' Discretionary scheme
fees Salaries bonus  contributions Total
BIRRER
EZHE Fe  BREL  AEER st
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TET TET TR TAT TET
For the year ended BE-B--%
31 March 2021 EREtT-HLFE
Executive Directors HITES
Yu Cheung Choy (note i) AR At (et - 2496 936 18 3450
Lau Man Ching (notes i and iii) 230 & (HizEi Riii) - 2,088 783 18 2,889
Yu Ho Chi (note i) anEE () - |, 584 264 18 1866
Independent BYFHITES
Non-Executive Directors
Lam Yim Nam (note i) Mk (Fati) 156 - - - 156
Law Man Wah (note i) B (Bstin) 156 - - - 156
Lee Wing Kee (note i) ok E (FaTi) 156 - - - 156
468 6,168 1983 54 8673
Notes: M eE
(0] The emoluments of Mr.Yu, Mr. Lau Man Ching (“Mr. Lau™), who is the chief 0] EXFIRETEA - BIXE T
executive officer and executive director of the Company, and Mr.Yu Ho Chi E(RIE] RARITH
shown above were for their services in connection with the management of BERIATES) ROEE
the affairs of the Company or its subsidiaries undertaking. FENWE REERERR
R AR EME A R =B
ERBHMNE -
(i) The emoluments of independent non-executive directors shown above were (ii) EXFRBUIERITESH
for their services as directors of the Company. FHRRSEIARAES
(iii) Mr. Lau is also the chief executive officer of the Company and his remuneration (i) BIRETRARAITHAE

disclosed above included these services rendered by him as chief executive

officer.

During the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021, no
remuneration was paid by the Group to the directors of the
Company as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or
as compensation for loss of office. No directors have waived any
remuneration during both years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Contd) 6.

(b)

Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid individuals included three (2021: three)
directors of the Company whose emoluments are included in the
disclosures in (a) above for the year ended 31 March 2022. The
emoluments of the remaining two (2021 two) individuals for the
year ended 31 March 2022 were as follows:

e PR R M

For the year ended 3| March 2022
BE_T-__F-A=1+—HLFE

EEkEEME (&)

(b)

EEME
hAEBREHFATBEEHE
—E-—_fF=H=+—H
IEFEMEFT A L) HE
EPHNARR =ZRES (=
T —FZR)HEZ
T - —_#=A=+—H1t
FE HHBEMZ(ZTZ—
F:RB)ATHEIE 0
e«

For the year ended 31 March

BE=A=1+—HLEE

2022 2021

—E-CF — B4

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET T

Salaries and other benefits e LHAMRER 3,253 3,136
Retirement benefit scheme contributions 3R AKFE FIET 217X 36 37
3,289 3,173

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

RENBME T FLATEE :

For the year ended 31 March

BE=-A=t—-HLFE

2022 2021

=B —ER——fE

Number of individuals

BEAH

HK$ 1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 #ITZE 1,500,000 77T
HK$ 1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 77T & 2,000,000 7T

During the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021, no emoluments
were paid by the Group to the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office.

REEZZE_—_FK=-F
— 4 = i S
B AEETERRAR
BEALINMNE  ER
G E PN RPN NS
B 1% 1) 1B Sk 1E R BE B

8 °

F 202122 [EEREE (ZR) BRAT 105



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R R TR

For the year ended 3| March 2022
BE_ZT-__F=-A=+—HLFE

7. OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAIN AND LOSS 7. Hag A R bz K B8

For the year ended 31| March
BE=A=1t—-HLEE

2022 2021
—E-CF B —%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Other income: Hig A -
Bank interest income ERITHFBULA 18 254
Interest income from debt instruments at KA AT RN BT A
amortised cost B BULA 659 558
Dividend income from insurance policy KB RERREKA 56 57
Dividend income from financial assets REKRAFETABZA
at FVTPL DRIEEMNREWA 1,991 728
Government grants (note) TR B (P ) - 8214
Sundry income LT PN 166 427
2,890 10,238
Other gain and loss: Hihlhm R EE
Fair value (loss) gain on financial assets at BRATESABRNEREE
FVTPL NEE (EE) e (7,474) 211
Note: BRE -
During the year ended 3| March 2021, the Group recognised government grants of HK$7,997,000 HE-_T-—F=A=1+—RHILFE  +58
in respect of the Employment Support Scheme launched by the Hong Kong Government. EBBAHE LN [RIE] T EIRER BT
B)7,997,000/7C °
8.  FINANCE COSTS 8.  HEERAL
For the year ended 31 March
BE=A=1+—-HLEFE
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Interests on bank borrowings HRITIE S E - 13
Interests on lease liabilities HERENE 91 234
91 347
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

e PR R M

For the year ended 3| March 2022
BE_T-__F-A=1+—HLFE
BRBL AT A

For the year ended 31 March
BE=A=t—-HLEE

2022 2021
—E-fF —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
Profit before taxation has been arrived at B AT & A4S HIBR A T B 18
after charging: ER
Auditor's remuneration 2 Gl 1,558 1,450
Depreciation of property and equipment MERZEIE 1,402 1,505
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEERE 2,161 2,460
Directors’ emoluments (note 6) BEEME (FI5E6) 8,392 8,673
Other staff costs: HA BT :
Salaries and other benefits e hHMEN 82,536 70018
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIRBAIFT IR 2,964 2,540
Total staff costs B TR 425 93,892 81,231
INCOME TAX EXPENSE FRrEBRAX
For the year ended 31 March
BE=-A=t+—-HLEFE
2022 2021
== =0 T —F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Hong Kong Profits Tax: BEBMEM
Current tax BNEATIE
Provision for the year FREE 3,939 6,964
Under/(over)-provision in prior years NAFEREBTIR
(EBEERAE) 8 (54)
3,947 6,910
Deferred taxation (note 24) EEFIE (5T 24) (58) 132
3,889 7,042
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e PR RRME

For the year ended 3| March 2022
HE-T-_—_F=A=+—RHIFE

10.
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Contd)

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed The Inland
Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the "“Bill"") which introduced
the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28
March 2018 and was gazetted on the following day. Under the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying
group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will
be taxed at 6.5%.The profits of group entities not qualifying for the two-
tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of
16.5%.

Accordingly, the Hong Kong Profits Tax for the qualifying group entity is
calculated at 8.25% on the first HK$2 million of the estimated assessable
profits and at 16.5% on the estimated assessable profits above HK$2
million.

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the profit
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as follows:

Fris®imx (&)
RZE—N\F=ZA=+—H &
BIEERB T —EEBRB (B
1) (B75) P ER(IEHIE
K] ESIAFERHBREH - 5
PIEZER-—_ZE—NE=A=-+N
HERBEXBEZEZITRBATE
B BEBEZAGHMAEH &
EREEETEMNE2008 B TR
12 8.25% T R EF - MERBE
200 & 7% 7T &9 : F 1 1% 16.5% B9 Bt
KT o TRFE % F 1S5/ AR
ERNEBER s BEBER
16.5% 2 B — T REFL

it e EREEERNES
FS IR E 200 BT 2 EFHER
T 4 A1) 19 8.25% I 48 18 200 & 7 7T
ZAEEHERBURFIE 165%5TH o

FA-AERAXEEABRER
Ho A 2 1 WA TR B9 BR B At A S
BRI -

For the year ended 31 March
HE=A=t—-HLFE

2022 2021
ot St : T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THTT
Profit before taxation PR R E A 15,622 51,176
Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate REBNISWINE 165%TEH)
of 165% fiia 2,578 8,444
Tax effect of income not taxable for BRERMBAN R E
tax purpose (449) (1,654)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for PRI S B E
tax purpose 1,593 148
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERHIEBENRIETE 324 323
Under/(over)-provision in prior years BEFEOBETIR
(EBEER ) 8 (54)
Income tax at concessionary rate REEHRABNMAEN (165) (165)
Income tax expense for the year FAMERAX 3,889 7,042




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EARNINGS PER SHARE I

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the following data:

e PR R M

For the year ended 3| March 2022
BE_T-__F-A=1+—HLFE

BRER
BRERBAMOFEDERIAT
g -

For the year ended 31 March
BE=A=t—-HLEE

2022 2021
—EBCCfF —E-—F
Earnings: B -
Earnings for the purpose of calculating AEERERBFATAN
basic earnings per share BA(RRREERA
(profit for the year attributable to FEMREFREN) (TET)
owners of the Company) (HK$'000) 11,733 44,134
Number of shares: BRIHER :
Weighted average number of ordinary shares ~ FLEtESREARF| 2 &
for the purpose of calculating basic AR NI E
earnings per share 400,000,000 400,000,000

No diluted earnings per share for the years ended 31 March 2022 and
2021 was presented as there was no dilutive potential ordinary share in
issue for both years.

DIVIDENDS 12.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, a final dividend in respect of the
year ended 3| March 2021 of HK3.9 cents per ordinary share (HK$15.6
million in aggregate) was declared and paid to the shareholders of the
Company. Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, i) a special
interim dividend of HK3.5 cents per ordinary share (HK$14.0 million
in aggregate based on the number of issued ordinary shares of the
Company as at 31 March 2022) has been declared by the directors of the
Company; and i) a final dividend in respect of the year ended 3| March
2022 of HKI.0 cent per ordinary share (HK$4.0 million in aggregate
based on the number of the issued ordinary shares of the Company as
at 31 March 2022) has been proposed by the directors of the Company
and is subject to approval by the shareholders of the Company at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, a final dividend in respect of the
year ended 3| March 2020 of HKI.7 cents per ordinary share (HK$6.8
million in aggregate) was declared and paid to the shareholders of the
Company.

HRBESE-—ER-_T=-—
FZA=+—HLEFELEDE
TEEEEEER  WAREE7
WMERGRE TR

BRE
RNEZE-_ZE-_—_F=H=+—H
HFE  BERARRBRETIRK
ENBE_E-_—F=A=+—
BHIFFERRIAR S SRE B
39 MI(AHI15608BT) > B
REHKE  VARAIEEEE
AR ERRR B AR LB AR 3.5 78
W(RBARBNR -_E-—_F=4
=+—HHEBITEBREE -
aHi1400&887L) 0 Ri)AAQA]
EEORERE-_T-_—_F=H8
“t+—HEFEZRBREESR
T@EIRI0OBI(BRERRRN
E-_—F=A=1+—B 22T
T@IREE - A 4008757T)
W A B AN 5 J% 3R R FE JE AR SR
FRE FibE -

EE = e —
IHFE  BERAXAARIBRETIRL
ENBE_E-_EF=A=+—
B IFFE R KRR B SRE B
|78 (A He80&HBTT) °
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e PR RRME

For the year ended 3| March 2022
BE_ZT-__F=-A=+—HLFE

13.  PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 13. YMERRE
Leasehold Computer
land and Leasehold Furniture and office
buildings improvements  and fixtures equipment Total
HELH KRAR ERK
kgF  HER - BEERE  BORE @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TRT TR TR TR TR

CosT R

At | April 2020 R-E-TFNA—H 24,088 2498 11490 4847 32923
Additions NE = = 30 124 |54
At 31 March 202 R-E-_—-%=A=1+—H 24,088 2498 1,520 497] 33077
Additions RNE = = - 184 184
At 31 March 2022 RZB-—#=A=1+—H 24,088 2,498 1,520 5,155 3326l
ACCUMULATED ZEHNE

DEPRECIATION

At | April 2020 R-E-EFNA—H 4876 2,133 1,199 3053 11261
Provided for the year FREE 705 163 104 533 | 505
At 31 March 202 R-E-—%=A=1+—H 5,58 229 1,303 3586 12,766
Provided for the year ENERE 705 9l 90 516 1402
At 31 March 2022 R-B-—_#=A=+—H 6,286 2387 1393 4102 14,168

CARRYING AMOUNTS REE

At 31 March 2022 R-E-_—#=A=+—H 17,802 [T 127 1,053 19,093

At 31 March 2021 R-F-_—%=A=1-H 18,507 202 217 1,385 20311

The above items of property and equipment are depreciated on a FmERREBEBRAERELE

straight-line basis at the following rates per annum: ATOIERRITE -

Leasehold land and buildings Over the term of the lease of MELTHRIET REHIZ4ER
34 years

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the term of HEEE AR EASR 5 F
the lease or 5 years (AR &

RE)A
Furniture and fixtures 20% RAKETEEE 20%
Computer and office equipment 20% BISRAKE 20%
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e PR R M

For the year ended 3| March 2022
HE-Z-_F=A=+—-HILFE

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 4. EREEE
Leased properties
HEME
HK$'000
THET
Carrying amount AREE
As at 31 March 2022 R E::EEHE+— 2434
As at 31 March 2021 NZE—F=A=+— 4,080
Depreciation e
For the year ended HE-_T-—_F=-A=+—HLHFE
31 March 2022 2,161
For the year ended FSE —F=ZA=T—HBILFE
31 March 2021 2,460

For the year ended 31 March
BE=A=1t—-HLHEE

2022 2021

—g=== T —F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

Expense relating to short-term leases HEHEEEENFX 98 72
Total cash outflow for leases HERSRLERE 2,280 2,780
Additions/modification to right-of-use assets ~ RNE MEM(EAREE 515 200

As at 31 March 2022, the Group has no outstanding short-term lease
commitments.

For both years, the Group leases various office premises and workshops
for its operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed term of |
to 2 years (2021: | to 3 years), but may have extension and termination
options as described below. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual
basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
In determining the lease term and assessing the length of the non-
cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of a contract and
determines the period for which the contract is enforceable.

The Group has extension and/or termination options in a number of
leases for office premises and workshops. These are used to maximise
operational flexibility in terms of managing the assets used in the Group’s
operations. The majority of extension and termination options held are
exercisable only by the Group and not by the respective lessors.

R-F__F=A=t+—H ' &
S [B30 B 5G BATH E AR -

AL BN M EFEREN DB PT
KRTHAEEER - HEAHH
BEHRS I 226 (2T =—%F:

| 234) - B AB TP iEHf
MR ERE - MEKFIRER
ERERET ERBRSHERE

2 B RHGRR S R - EEE T A
ﬁﬁ?Tﬁ%%ﬁ%-ﬁﬁl

FERE& MM ERILHEE S KA R
BT m%@
AEEFEAETHMARM RIS

MEMTERR R IERERE-
ZEERERANAEERNEEL
EFfRCEERRZBEERK
b o Pris B M IE ) S 4% (SR 124
REDER AL BT EMIENR
FEHTEA o
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e PR RRME

For the year ended 3| March 2022

BE_ZT-__F=-A=+—HLFE
14.  RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Contd) 14 CERAEEEE)
The Group assesses at lease commencement date whether it is REBREERSKBBHTERS
reasonably certain to exercise the extension options or not to exercise S IR ITREEE ERE
the termination options. After assessment, the Group considered that it Tfﬂf,ﬁgﬂ:% B T
is reasonably certain it will exercise extension option and not exercise REERGHABBEHEKITE
termination options. FEERE Tﬁﬁé&?fﬂfiﬁt RN -
In addition, the Group reassesses whether it is reasonably certain to BEoh - BEEBREHIEAEA
exercise an extension option, or not to exercise a termination option, ﬁ%‘] IEANBEREEERNE L
upon the occurrence of either a significant event or a significant change CARBEENAGEREES
in circumstances that is within the control of the lessee. During the years fiﬁ?’é TTERE B B R S T
ended 3| March 2022 and 2021, there is no such triggering event. RIEEBE -BE_T__FR
—E_—F=ZA=+—HLF
€ WA EM -
Restrictions or covenants on leases HERBIRRE
In addition, lease liabilities of HK$2,751,000 (202 |: HK$4,344,000) are &t&l\ CTRIZEZZF=A=+—
recognised with related right-of-use assets of HK$2,434,000 (2021: - BLAE A (£ 8 #E & 72,434,000
HK$4,080,000) as at 31 March 2022. The lease agreements do not /%TE(_Q_ £ : 4,080,00077T)
impose any covenants other than the security interests in the leased B R fﬂ & B f&2751,000% (=
assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as T = — F 143440008 7T ) ° B
security for borrowing purposes. ﬁ Tﬂ/\% ENHEEENERE
>_’\9|\ - THE 15 I o hnAE{A] 22
- HEBETSMIERRER -
I5.  TRADE RECEIVABLES 15. BREWNRE
As at 31 March
R=B=+—8
2022 2021
B CF —ET-—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT TAET
Trade receivables B 5 WA 34,182 89,037
Less: Impairment loss allowance B OREE R (163) (203)
34,019 88,834

As at | April 2020, trade receivables from contracts with customers
amounted to HK$59,812,000.
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TRADE RECEIVABLES (Contd) 15.

The Group grants credit terms of 30 days to its customers from the date
of invoices on progress billings of contract works. An aged analysis of the
trade receivables net of impairment loss allowance presented based on
the invoice date at the end of each reporting period is as follows:

e PR R M

For the year ended 3| March 2022
BE_T-__F-A=1+—HLFE

B 5 RURIE(E)
AEEBEARNTREEHAER
BHEEEmE R PR H30KMNER
e REBRERARERERAH
2 5IVE 5 W IR (kR R E &
BRE) RO

As at 3| March

R=A=+—8H
2022 2021
—E-= —BE— =45
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
0-30 days 0E 30K 23,762 85,146
31-60 days EEXES 9,274 | 14
61-90 days 61 E90K 236 3,488
Over 90 days FRiE 90 K 747 86
34,019 88,834

As at 3| March 2022, included in the Group’s trade receivables balance
are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of HK$10,257,000 (2021:
HK$3,688,000) which are past due as at the reporting date. Out of the
past due balances, HK$747,000 (2021: HK$86,000) has been past due
90 days or more and is not considered as in default as these balances
are either from debtors with long term business relationship or with
expected subsequent settlement. The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances.

Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables are set out in note
30.

RN-ZEBE=—=—F=H=+—H ' &
SEEBESERFBLEHBEEERER
4218 10,257,000 T (=T =—% :
3,688,000 7T ) U E MR R + %%
BRFRFEBBHE A - L
g 7470008 T (ZE = —F ¢«
86,0007 7T ) B 5K I8 B 81 HA 90 K3k
A FBREREED - TIRRZ
EEBREERPBEBBENE
BARTBEEREEN - NEE
ER RS ARG A EAERY

B E 5 R YRIBRE R
BRI HIEE30
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e PR R R TR

For the year ended 3| March 2022
BE_ZT-__F=-A=+—HLFE

6. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 6. HMEWMIE RERFBEFNRE
As at 3| March
R=A=+—H
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—1F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Rental and other deposits HERHMRSE 866 854
Deposits in life insurance policies (note) ShREZRE (M) 1,819 1,762
Deposits paid for acquisition of property and  WEEW 2 KR ENENiZe
equipment 416 240
Other receivables H fib e W FOE 3,742 2018
Prepayments and others TERTRIE R E A 5,710 4,285
Total HEt 12,553 9,159
Presented as non-current assets E2IEERDEE 2,960 2,755
Presented as current assets BRAEREEE 9,593 6,404
Total 4t 12,553 9,159

Note: The amount represented the deposits placed with an insurance company for the
life insurance policies of two directors of the Company. The Group can, at any time,
receive cash back based on the cash value of the policies (“Cash Value”) at the date of
withdrawal, which is equal to the sum of tabular cash value shown in the relevant policy
schedules with any dividend accumulations and the cash values of any paid-up additions,
less any indebtedness. The carrying amount of the life insurance policies approximates the

Cash Value of the insurance policies.

Details of impairment assessment of other receivables and deposits are
set out in note 30.
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e PR R M

For the year ended 3| March 2022
HE-Z-_F=A=+—-HILFE

CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES 17. BHREERGHEE
As at 3| March
R=A=+—8H
2022 2021
—E-CF T —%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Contract assets BHEE 136,234 [11,033
Less: Impairment loss allowance R EE R (90) (83)
136,144 [ 10,950
Contract liabilities aHBE 65,009 73,152

As at | April 2020, contract assets and contract liabilities amounted to
HK$ 131,565,000 and HK$ 1 1,328,000 respectively.

The Group has rights to considerations from customers for the provision
of E&M engineering services. Contract assets arise when the Group has
right to consideration for completion of E&M engineering services and
not yet billed under the relevant contracts, and their right is conditional
on factors other than passage of time. Any amount previously recognised
as a contract asset is reclassified to trade receivables when such right
becomes unconditional other than the passage of time. Remaining rights
and performance obligations in a particular contract is accounted for and
presented on a net basis, as either a contract asset or a contract liability. If
the progress payment exceeds the revenue recognised to date under the
input method, the Group recognises a contract liability for the difference.

R-E_ZTFNA—H AH&
ERGHNEED R A3 565000
BT 11,328,000 7T ©

AEBEERLEHREETRRS
AEFPHEAE - NEEFEH
BRI E T2 IR WA E(E
HARBHEBEORRERES
BHEE - mEE N ARE R &
HEB MR E R IR - B R
A b B s B ) 7 P /S 2
i EARAEZSEHNEE
MEREENDBERFH I
R IBERKMER NER KEL
BEENFREEARKRZIARE
MEEXAKNER - HEERA
iﬂﬂﬁ%k&ﬁ%%é%%
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=
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e PR RRME

For the year ended 3| March 2022
BE_ZT-__F=-A=+—HLFE

17.

CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Contd)

The Group's engineering service contracts include payment schedules
which require stage payments over the contract period once certain
specified milestones based on surveyors' assessment are reached.

Retention money is unsecured and interest-free and represented the
monies withheld by customers of contract works recoverable after
the completion of defect liability period of the relevant contracts or in
accordance with the terms specified in the relevant contracts, usually
being | to 2 years from the date of completion of respective E&M
engineering services projects. Normally the retention money will be
accumulated up to 5% or 10% of the contract value.

The Group classifies these contract assets as current because the Group
expects to realise them in its normal operating cycle.

Details of impairment assessment of contract assets are set out in note

30.

For the contract liabilities as at 31 March 2021, HK$48,263,000 were
recognised as revenue to profit or loss during the year ended 3| March
2022.

For the contract liabilities as at | April 2020, HK$8,102,000 were
recognised as revenue to profit or loss during the year ended 3| March
2021,

The increase in contract assets in current year is resulted from the
increase in the Group's right to consideration for completion of E&M
engineering services but not vyet billed under the relevant contracts as at
31 March 2022.

The decrease in contract liabilities in current year is resulted from
recognition as revenue to profit or loss during the year ended 31 March
2022.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R M

For the year ended 3| March 2022
BE_T-__F-A=1+—HLFE

DEBT INSTRUMENTS AT AMORTISED COST 18. REBEMATIRNEZETA
As at 31 March
R=A=+—H
2022 2021
—EBC-—F —E-—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHET THETT
Investment in listed bond: LETEHFRIRE
—With fixed interest of |1.50% and maturity ~ — #.fﬁﬂ 8.11.50% & EHIH
date in August 202 RZZB_—F)\R - 1918
—With fixed interest of 7.25% and maturity - REEHE725% KE|H B
date in March 2022 R-T-__%=A - 3,085
— With fixed interest of 7.95% and maturity - EA.Eﬂ £.795% R E|HAE &
date in October 2023 —ET-=F1H 525 1,924
Investment in listed perpetual capital R EIEF B 5.25% &) _E k&
securities with fixed interest of 5.25% (note) BARFBHHIRE () 4,190 4,189
4,715 L1116
Analysed as: DR
Current mE - 5,003
Non-current IERE 4,715 6,113
4,715 1116
Note:  There is no maturity of the securities and the payments of distribution can be deferred at Misk : %EHAFHMEIHE - MOIRMRREA]
the discretion of the issuer, and there is no limit as to the number of times of deferral of RETABBERERLE - WA D IKE
distribution. Any distribution so deferred shall bear interest as if it constituted the principal TR R BN R o EAAIRE D IR AS
of the securities. The perpetual capital securities are callable by issuer. Because the EAEFS - BINEEKZEESFNAR
contractual cash flows of listed perpetual capital securities represent solely the payments &M o KBBEARBEHTBBTAE
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding, the investment in listed Bl - R ETKEEAREHFNAE LR
perpetual capital securities is measured at amortised cost. EREERRAE RAEERSHT
%H, KA AEFNIRE
R AT E -
Details of impairment assessment of debt instruments at amortised cost REHKAYRNER TARME
are set out in note 30. S IEEAMIEE 30 ©
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For the year ended 3| March 2022
BE_ZT-__F=-A=+—HLFE

19.  FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR  19. RAVEFABBENERMEE
LOSS
Financial assets mandatorily measured at FVTPL: BRER AT EFABRGTENS
BMEE -
As at 31 March
R=R=+—H
2022 2021
—EC-CF —E-_—F
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong REE LT HIRAE 21,476 21,873
Unlisted funds in overseas RBINR ETES 25,030 10010
46,506 31,883
20. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 20, MITERRRE
Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and bank RITEREREBEAREFRR
deposits carry at variable interest rates with an original maturity of three Re RRITERCGRF A EG
months or less. As at 31 March 2022, the variable interest rates ranged B REHBA=MAHLUT) -
from 0.001% to 0.77% (2021:0.01% to 0.50%) per annum. RZZEZZF=R=+—8"%
B)F A E N F0001%E077%( =
T —F : 001%ZE050%) °
21.  TRADE PAYABLES 2. EBRENFE

The credit period on purchases and subcontracting of contract work
services ranges from 30 to 60 days generally. The following is an aged
analysis of trade payables presented based on the invoice date at the end
of each reporting period:

PIRHRBRE DB EH TERBEH
EREBRENTI0EOK > AR
BREREHRENBEAHZ
PR E 5 IEN FOBRR DT -

As at 3| March

R=A=+—H
2022 2021
—E-CF =%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT

Trade payables: BHENTIE

0-30 days 0E30K 25,182 29,109
31-60 days 31 260K 28,713 26,789
61-90 days 61 290K 46 5,367
53,941 61,265
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R M

For the year ended 3| March 2022
BE_T-__F-A=1+—HLFE

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED CHARGES 22. HttENRERESER

As at 3| March

R=BA=+—8
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—1F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Accrued staff costs JEEH B TR 10,591 9,037
Accrued contract costs FEETA 4IRK AR 35,134 26,880
Other accrued charges HibfEstE A 1,624 2,168
Retention payables (note) FERMRE € (BT EE) 47,706 38,995
95,055 77,080

Note: Retention payables to subcontractors of contract works are interest-free and payable by

the Group after the completion of defect liability period of the relevant contracts or in

accordance with the terms specified in the relevant contracts, ranging from | to 2 years

from the completion date of the respective engineering service contracts.

M EORREOAOTERES AR
B ARARERERAORENSE
Rk SR IR 4R B A MO RLE 0 I BR
ff - AR TR A D5 A e
HAF I E2% -

LEASE LIABILITIES 23. HERE
As at 31 March
R=A=+—8H
2022 2021
el e — g —%E
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Lease liabilities payable: ENHERE :
Within one year —FRA 2,307 2,228
Within a period of more than one year but —F L BT BIBRF
not exceeding two years 444 1,949
Within a period of more than two years but MFA LB NEBBRF
not exceeding five years - |67
2,751 4,344
Less: Amount due for settlement with B mBAEE TR
12 months shown 1218 B 2| ERpE 1 & 58
under current liabilities (2,307) (2,228)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months  FERENEEIE FAIR 12 &8 A 1%
shown under non-current liabilities HHENe 444 2,116

The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied to lease
liabilities range from 2.4 1% to 2.66% (202 1:2.48% to 4.84%).

ERAREEaEMIMEFHIES
ERFENF241% 2 266%(ZF
T 048%E 4.84%) ©
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For the year ended 3| March 2022
BE_ZT-__F=-A=+—HLFE
24. DEFERRED TAXATION

The following is the deferred tax (liabilities) assets recognised and
movements thereon during the current and prior years.

24.

EEBIE

THBRAEE RIALFENE
REIEHIE (8 () BE R
28 -

Accelerated

accounting ECL
depreciation provision Total
BHEE
MEETE BRRE mat

HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000

TiEn TERr TERr

At | April 2020 RZZE-_ZFNA—H (122) 260 138
Credit(charge) to profit or loss (note 10) 5F A (FNBR A ) 1835 (FI5E 10) 8l @13) (132)
At 31 March 202 RZZEZ—4=A=+—H (41 47 6
Credit(charge) to profit or loss (note 10) 5t A (FNBR B ) 1825 (KTFE10) 64 6) 58
At 31 March 2022 KRZE-—F=A=+—H 23 41 64

At 31 March 2022, the Group has unused estimated tax losses of
HK$ 11,378,000 (2021: HK$9,414,000). No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of such estimated tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit stream. All tax losses may be carried
forward indefinitely.
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For the year ended 3| March 2022
BE_T-__F-A=1+—HLFE

PROVISIONS 25. BB

Long service

payments

REBRB R

HK$'000

TAET

At | April 2020 N_ZE_ZTFMA—H 574
Reversed for the year FARRE (67)
At 31 March 2021 R-FE-_—F=A=+—~H 507
Charged for the year FAHER 14
At 31 March 2022 R-ZE-__F=A=1+—~H 521

The Group provides for the probable future long service payments
expected to be made to employees under the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The provision represents the management’s best estimate of
probable future payments which have been earned by the employees
from their services to the group entities up to the end of each reporting
period.

AEE R FRMR BT B R ME D
718 8 1F th 1 7] BE R SR R HAAR 75
NHEHERE -  BREEEESR
THREEEHNEECREH
TR B E 58 H AR TS AT BREX AT BE

RIS RV EERGRT

SHARE CAPITAL 26, BAX
Details of share capital of the Company are as follows: RATHRRFFWOT -
Amount
Number 28
of shares HK$ HK$'000
BHEE BT TERr
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each FREMB0 BT L AR
Authorised: EE
At | April 2020, 31 March 2021 R-ZZ_ZFMA—H -
and 2022 o FER-E-CF
= = vmis 10,000,000,000 100,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRBEZN
At | April 2020, 31 March 2021 AZT-THFMA—H -
and 2022 —E-ERZFE-F
= A="NE 400,000,000 4,000,000 4,000
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BE_ZT-__F=-A=+—HLFE

27.

28.

29.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS 27. EEEF
As at 31 March 2022 and 2021, the Group pledged the following assets R-_TBE__FR_ZT_—F=H
to secure the certain banking facilities including performance guarantees =+t—B AEEEFUTEE
issued by the banks. NAETRITHE (BERTELY
EVBAVRE) (EHEHA -
The carrying amounts of the assets pledged are as follows: EHEMEEREENT
As at 31 March
R=ZA=+—H
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—4F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET TET
Leasehold land and buildings HE T RIEF 17,802 18,507
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 28. BEAIRS
Other than as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial BRI GRS B 5 SR 2% E fth b 75 P %
statements, the Group does not have any material related party BEN NEBRMIEFELE
transactions for both years. CREIEDNCE R
Compensation to key management personnel FEEEASNHMH
Compensation to key management personnel of the Group which RAEEFZEERBAE (AIKRARE
represent the directors of the Company is set out in note 6(a). =) B BERA MR 6(a) ©
As at 31 March 2022 and 2021, the Group had a facility agreement RZZBZZFR-FT-—F=H1
entered into with a bank with certain obligations of Mr.Yu and Mr. Lau =+—HB AEEEF-—HE—X
pursuant to such facility agreement including the following: (i) Mr Yu IRITAI R E ok - WARE AL
and Mr Lau undertake to maintain as the largest shareholders of the EmmEAEEatE R EENE
Company directly or indirectly; and (i) MrYu and Mr. Lau shall remain as FTRAEME  BEWOT : (ak
the chairman or director of the Company. G RE ST AEAFEAEEREZEER
TERAN R B BRRABR ¢ B (i)
FTERBEERDEEARFD
IFELES
CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 29. EBEXERERE

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
owners through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity of the Group,
comprising share capital and reserves.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure regularly
taking into account the cost of capital and the risk associated with
the capital. The Group will balance its overall capital structure through
issuance of new shares and raising new borrowings or the repayment of
the existing borrowings.
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For the year ended 3| March 2022
BE_T-__F-A=1+—HLFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 30. £@MIA
Categories of financial instruments SRITAEMER
As at 3| March
R=A=+—AH
2022 2021
—E-CF —E—%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TET
Financial assets EHEE
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEGFABRNSRMEE 46,506 31,883
Financial assets at amortised cost TR AT BRI E E 295,118 340,864
Financial liabilities o= N=Ri
Amortised cost HESHRAR 145,892 136,002

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s financial instruments include financial assets at FVTPL, debt
instruments at amortised cost, trade receivables, other receivables and
deposits, bank balances, trade payables, other payables and accrued
charges and lease liabilities. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out
below. The management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

Market risk

(i) Currency risk
The group entities have financial assets denominated in currencies
other than their respective functional currencies. Consequently,
the Group is exposed to risks that the exchange rate of functional
currencies relative to other currencies may change in a manner
that has an adverse effect on the value of the position of the
Group's assets denominated in foreign currencies.

The exposure primarily arises from the investments in listed bond,
unlisted funds in overseas and bank balances denominated in
United States dollars (“US$").

BERREEEEREE
AEENSRTIABSTERATE
AR SR EE - IREHEK
RAEMNERE IR - EZEKK
IH - BRI RIRS - RTT
wer BHEMNRIE - HMER
HREREFERALHEEE - B
BAZEeMITANFBRSWFE
FE - fEZSEeRITAENRR
K2 anfa] R B8 7% 55 [ B ) BUR SR
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RUEREBERNTEENE
iiid
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30.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Contd)

30.

ERMTRE)

BB RERE

BEEERBEK(E)

Market risk (Cont'd) 5 E g (&)
(i) Currency risk (Cont'd) 0) SRR (E)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency REBIINEHEEREE
denominated monetary assets at the end of the reporting period REREROREELNT
are as follows:
As at 31 March
R=B=+—8H
2022 2021
B —EF-—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FRET TAET
Us$ eI 24,059 21,351
Under the pegged exchange rate system, the financial impact in RIZMEE XS E BT
exchange fluctuation between HK$ and US$ is considered to be HETTEZE L RER
immaterial and therefore no sensitivity analysis has been prepared. BERERARR/TK Bt
WAREREGRE DT
(i) Interest rate risk iy  FERR

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk primarily relates to the
bank balances as disclosed in note 20 as at 31 March 2022 and
2021.The Group’s fair value interest rate risk primarily relates to
fixed-rate bond investments and lease liabilities as at 31 March
2022 and 2021 as disclosed in notes 18 and 23.

The Group has not used any interest rate swaps to mitigate
its exposure associated with interest rate risk. However, the
management of the Group monitors interest rate exposure and
will consider hedging significant interest rate exposure should the
need arise.

No sensitivity analysis is provided on bank balances as the
management of the Group considers that the interest rate
fluctuation on bank balances is minimal.

124 SH GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED Annual Report 2021-22

AEEMR e RENER
R E ZHMMF20BER
T _FRIE - —F=
H:+ EE"J@ETT:M%%
e AEBHQAFEMNE
2 B = 22 BB 5 18 K 23 B
WERN_BE-_—_FEK_-F
——F=A=+—HHE
ENEEHIRELTEES
BB -

74 9 B 4 2 R £ T )
EAREREBH KA
o 57T AKEEEE
B - 58
R B EAHEE,

)
S

I M gk BR 1T 45 B H BIURK
Eof REAARKREETE
BRER ﬁﬁﬁ & BRI X
EEN N B &



30.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd)
Financial risk management objectives and policies (Contd)

Market risk (Contd)

(i)

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to price risk through its investments in
equity securities and unlisted funds measured at FVTPL. For
equity securities quoted in the Stock Exchange and unlisted funds
measured at FVTPL, the management manages this exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments with different risks.

Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analyses have been determined based on the
exposure to price risk at the reporting date.

If the prices of the respective instruments had been 10% higher/
lower, the post-tax profit for the year ended 31 March 2022
would increase/decrease by HK$3,883,000 as a result of the
changes in fair value of equity securities measured at FVTPL (2021:
HK$2,662,000).

Credit risk and impairment assessment

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a
financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge the obligations
by counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of the respective

recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement of

financial position at the end of each reporting period.

The management adopts a policy on providing credit facilities to new

customers. A credit investigation, including assessment based on financial

information of the new customers and credit search, is required. The

level of credit granted must not exceed a predetermined level set by the

management. Credit evaluation is performed on a regular basis.
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30.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd)
Financial risk management objectives and policies (Contd)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Contd)

Trade receivables and contract assets arising from contracts with
customers

In order to minimise the credit risk on trade receivables and contract
assets, management of the Group has delegated a team responsible
for monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, management of the Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual debt at the end of each
reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment loss allowance are
made for irrecoverable amounts on trade receivable and contract assets.
The Group applies simplified approach on trade receivables and contract
assets to provide for ECL. ECL on trade receivables and contract assets
are assessed individually. The assessment is based on the internal credit
ratings, ageing, repayment history and/or past due status of the respective
customers. As part of the Group's credit risk management, the Group
applied internal credit rating for its customers and applying the estimated
loss rate ranging from 0.00% to 2.12% (2021: 0.04% to 4.46%) over
the gross carrying amounts. In this regard, management of the Group
considers that the credit risk on trade receivables and contract assets is
significantly reduced.

The Group has concentration of credit risks with exposure limited to
certain customers. The Group’s largest debtor contributed approximately
24% (2021: 66%) of the Group's trade receivables and 37% (202 1: 33%)
of the Group's contract assets, respectively. The Group's five largest
debtors contributed approximately 81% (2021: 88%) of the Group’s
trade receivables and 75% (2021: 85%) of the Group’s contract assets,
respectively.

Other receivables and deposits

For other receivables and deposits, the management of the Group makes
periodic collective assessment as well as individual assessment on the
recoverability of other receivables based on historical settlement records,
past experience, and also available reasonable and supportive forward-
looking information. The management of the Group believes that there
is no material credit risk inherent in the Group’s other receivables and
deposits.
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30.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Contd)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Contd)

Debt instruments at amortised cost

The Group'’s debt instruments at amortised cost mainly comprise listed
bonds issued by companies listed in the Stock Exchange. The Group
determines whether the debt instruments held by the Group have
suffered from significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition by
comparing the credit rating and other qualitative benchmarks that affect
the credit quality of the debt instruments at initial recognition and at the
end of the reporting period.

As at 31 March 2022, as an issuer of a debt instrument has suffered from
significant financial difficulty, that debt instrument held by the Group
is therefore considered as credit-impaired. The Group estimates the
probability of default and the loss given default of the debt instrument
with reference to relevant default studies published by the credit
rating agencies after taking into account forward-looking information
available without undue cost or effort. In view of the above, the Group's
management considers the ECL allowance on the debt instruments is
adequate at 31 March 2022.

In view of the listed bond prices as at 3| March 2021, the management
of the Group believes that there is no material credit risk inherent in the
Group'’s debt instruments at amortised cost.

Bank balances

As at 31 March 2022 and 2021 the credit risk on bank balances of
the Group is limited because the counterparties are banks with good
reputation and credit ratings and no history of default in the past and no
impairment loss allowance for bank balances was recognised. The Group
has limited exposure to any single financial institution.
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30.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd) 30. E©MIAE)
Financial risk management objectives and policies (Contd) HRRMREEEERBE(Z)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Cont'd) 1B R ERT S (&)
The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the Group’s financial TRFMBEETRBAEEEEN
assets at amortised cost and contract assets, which are subject to ECL O AREEREHEKARTRNE
assessment: HEEMGRNEEAENFEER
Sl
Asat 31 March
W=A=1-A
00 2021
—ECCE —EC-F
External credit ~ Internal credit Imor  Gross carrying  Gross canrying
Note rating rating lifetime ECL amount amount
HE wE nEARE
i3 FER REFR EHEEER FaAE HEER
HK$'000 HK$000
TiEn TAL
Financial assets at amortised costs RESRASIRNEREE
Trade receivebles B RAGR 15 NIA Note| Lifeme ECL 34,82 89037
R it | RS
FERR
Other receivables and deposits Rt RNERES l6 NIA Note 2 |2m ECL 6,843 4874
T WE2  fEREH
FEBR
Debt instruments st amortied cost ~ REBMATIRMBEHIA 18 Bl NIA IImECL 4190 11,171
(201 : Ba-B3) IR NERES
FEBA
N/A Note 3 Lifetime ECL 1,951 -
(credit-impaired)
TaH fifi3 SR
FERR
(FEHE)
Bark baances Bk 0 Aad-A3 NIA IImECL 1954 26040
(2001 : Aad-AY) MER NEAEE
FEER
Other items B8R
Contract assets AkEE 17 NIA Note | Lietime ECL 136,234 111033
il fifiz | SR
FEBE
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30.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd)
Financial risk management objectives and policies (Contd)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Contd)

Notes:

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group has applied the simplified approach
in HKFRS 9 to measure the impairment loss allowance at lifetime ECL. ECL on trade
receivables and contract assets are assessed individually. The assessment is based on the
internal credit ratings, ageing, repayment history and/or past due status of the respective

customers.

2. For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the Group mainly uses past due
information to assess whether credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition.
All of these balances are not past due at 31 March 2022 and 2021.

3. For credit-impaired debt instruments at amortised cost, the Group assessed the lifttime
ECL with reference to relevant default studies published by the credit rating agencies after

taking into account forward-looking information available without undue cost or effort.

The following table shows the movement in |2m ECL and lifetime ECL
that has been recognised for trade receivables, contract assets and debt
instruments at amortised cost.

30.

e PR R M

For the year ended 3| March 2022
BE_T-__F-A=1+—HLFE

EMIAE)
BBRBREEEEREE(E)
1ZEmER LR E S ()
GEE

REZEUTIRARANEENS * &
SEEERAEBUBMSERE IR
MLE B2 BEBEEBRAR
EERER - BIREFARANE
ENEREREERIERFG o 7
TEMBEEFHAREETR - iR
B BRESL KB R -

2. RABEERREREMS  A%EE
ZEAOHERTHEERREER
RUARREREEZEIEN - FTAZSHE
BR_E-_—_FR-T=—F=A
=t+—HxEH -

3 SRR S A BRI BT TAM =
AEESEEETREERM A0
EORSRE - Wat RBEARBEKA
FARAMET Z AIE LB R - FHEE
HRBEEER -

NTRBTIEZEEFIE - &4
BERIREHK A BROER T
HHERAN NREARREEBENR
R EERRES -
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For the year ended 3| March 2022
BE_ZT-__F=-A=+—HLFE

30.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd) 300 @®MIAE)
Financial risk management objectives and policies (Contd) MERBEEEERBEK(Z)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Cont'd) 1B R ERT S (&)
[2m ECL
(not credit-
impaired)
1218 A B Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
FEER (not credit-impaired) (credit-impaired)
(RE4E 2HEREEER RERAGERR
EEHE) (RBEFERE) (BEREEAE)
Debt Debt
instruments instruments
at amortised Trade  Contract ~ Contract at amortised
cost  receivables assets assets cost Total
s} s}
HE AR g% HAAIRR
WEKIAE BRRE ANEE ANEE MEKIA act
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL FAL FAT TET TET TAL
As at | April 2020 R-E-2EMA-A - 567 1011 | 499+ - 3077
Changes due to financial instruments AU —BEREBIA
recognised as at | April: BHHEE:
— Impairment losses reversed — BREREESE - (567) (943) (1499)* - (3,009)
— Impairment losses recognised — ERRREESR 27 - 3 - - 30
New financial assets originated ErSBE eRER
or purchased 28 203 12 - - 243
Asat 3| March 2021 R=2--%¥=A=t-H 55 203 83 - - 34
Changes due to financial instruments  FPIA—ABER BT
recognised as at | April BHHEE:
—Transfer to credit-impaired —ERIEERE (27) - _ _ 77 _
— Impairment losses reversed — BEOREER (28) (143) (44) - - (215)
— Impairment losses recognised — ERRREESE - - - - 1399 1399
New financial assets originated EXSBE EREE
or purchased - 103 51 - - 154
As at 31 March 2022 RZB-Z%=A=1-H - 163 90 - | 426 1,679
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd)
Financial risk management objectives and policies (Contd)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Contd)

The lifetime ECL recognised for credit-impaired contract assets as at | April 2020 is
resulting from a debtor who went into liquidation process during the year ended 31
March 2019. The gross amount of credit-impaired contract assets is approximately
HK$1,499,000. During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group received settlement of

HK$ 1,499,000 from customer and reversed the impairment allowance.

The Group writes off a trade receivable when there is information
indicating that the debtor is in severe financial difficulty and there is no
realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or when the
trade receivables are over two years past due, whichever occurs earlier.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains
a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by management
to finance the Group's operations and mitigate the effects of unexpected
fluctuations in cash flows.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual maturity
for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table has been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the
earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay. The maturity
dates for other non-derivative financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate at the end of each
reporting period.

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.

30.

e PR R M

For the year ended 3| March 2022
BE_T-__F-A=1+—HLFE

$RMTHE(E)

BERREEREREK(E)

BRI R RE L (&)

* R-ZZE-_ZTFWNA—B  gedBE
BERENSHNEERBNZHESE
EEBPEREE-_E-AE=A

=t+—BUEFEEHBAENEEREF
s - ERREERENENEERN
R B 1499008 BE-T
——F=A=+—HILFE  F£H
IELSR B B P K& E7KE 1,499,000 78

TeI BB R E R o
B ERBRES AR ABRER

BREEEERK@ AT - fln
BEHABBTRRDEABRER
F REBEZERURACDAHER

MEAREERE)  AXAKHE
SMHE 5 IR

RE B/
EEERBDECRARE  AEH
ERk#EREEER AT RN
S RRESZFEYWKE  UAKE
BOEKREREES  WHERS

MEEINKENETE -

TRALAEEITESRAE

%TA%ﬂ% ° RRRIEAE
BERERNRA T B HIH
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For the year ended 3| March 2022
HE_Z-__F=A=+—-HILFE

30.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd) 30 £mMIAE)
Financial risk management objectives and policies (Contd) MERBEERRRBEK(Z)
Liquidity risk (Contd) HBE T AR ()
Weighted
average Tota Total
effecive  Repayable on Within undiscounted carrying
interest rate demand | year |2 years 15 years cash flows amount
33 HEX ARRE

L i i -ERE CERF REME RAME
% HK§ 000 HK§ 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HK$ o0 HK§ 000
Thn TRn Thn Thn Thn Thn

Asat 31 March 2002 =Bz =£=A=1-H
Trade paabls SREME NIA TER - 941 - - B4l Bl
Other payebles and EHERER
acrued charges FirEE NAFER - 9191 - - 9191 91951
Lease it HERE 24 - 2348 448 - 2% 2l
- 148,240 “ - 148,688 48643
Weighted
alerage Total Total
effective Repayable on Within undiscounted a@ryig
interest rate demand [ year -2 years 15 years cash flows amount
TS HEX MRS
ERHE i —£R —EE CERE i RESE
% HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
Tin Thn Tin Tin Tin T
Asat 31 March 2001 R-E--F=R=1-8
Trade paabls BREME NATER - 6165 - - 61,65 61,65
Other payebles and HERTER
acrued charges EiEE NATER - M - - U3 U
Lease bt HEAR 477 - 28 207 I¢7 4557 434
- 138365 2007 g7 140559 4034
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For the year ended 3| March 2022
BE_T-__F-A=1+—HLFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd) 30. E©®MIAGE)
Fair value measurement of financial instruments SRIAQAFEFE
Fair value of the Group's financial assets that are measured at fair value on a JEAE 1 E2E Y N FEGTER A
recurring basis EEYHEERN L FE
Some of the Group's financial assets are measured at fair value at the REEHDMBEEDIRNERE
end of each reporting period. The following table gives information about HRBRAFEFE - TRIEHD
how the fair values of these financial assets are determined (in particulan, METZEREELATENEH
the valuation technique(s) and inputs used), as well as the level of the fair (RERMEERERFAERNEA
value hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are categorised HIR)  URBRATEFERAR
(Levels | to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value BRABEREERATEFES
measurements is observable. BARTERBOHR(E—ES
=) -
Fair value as at
RT5IBHRNATE
Valuation
Fair value technique(s)

Financial instruments 31 March 2022 31 March 202| hierarchy and key input(s)

—E-c-E —E-— HERER
$RMIA =ZA=t-H ZA=+-H DNYERE IRGAHE
Financial assets at fair value Equity securities Equity securities Level | Quoted bid prices

through profit or loss

BRVEFABRNEREE

listed in Hong Kong:

HK$21,476,000
NEE L MERAES

21,476,000 7T

Unlisted funds

in overseas:

HK$25,030,000

REBIMIR ETES -

25,030,000/ 7T

listed in Hong Kong:

HK$21,873,000
REB L MRRAES

21,873,000787C

Unlisted funds

in overseas:

HK$10,010,000
REIMIR EMES
10,010,000 77T

There is no transfers among Level | and Level 2 during both periods.

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are not measured at
fair value on a recurring basis

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.

in an active market
—#k EERTEMRAFHE

Level 2 Quoted prices from

financial institutions

it TRBERE

MM — AR E — Rz fE
IR

AR B A R FER B
w1z EERETHMEENLFE

ARAREFRD  RREMBR
RIZBHER AR EREE R
TRHABENERAEEEQAFER

++

Eo
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31.

32.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The MPF Scheme is registered with the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Authority under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those
of the Group in funds under the control of an independent trustee. Under
the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are each required to
make contributions to the MPF Scheme at rates specified in the rules.
The only obligation of the Group with respect to the MPF Scheme is to
make the required contributions. Except for voluntary contribution, no
forfeited contribution under the MPF Scheme is available to reduce the
contribution payable in future years. The cap of contribution amount is
HK$ 1,500 per employee per month.

The retirement benefit scheme contributions arising from the MPF
Scheme recognised in profit or loss represent contributions paid or
payable to the fund by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the
MPF Scheme.

The contributions paid and payable to the schemes by the Group are
disclosed in notes 6(a) and 9.

PERFORMANCE GUARANTEES

As at 31 March 2022, performance guarantees of HK$ 134,757,000
(2021: HK$155,386,000) were given by banks in favour of the Group’s
customers as security for the due performance and observance of the
Group's obligations under the contracts entered into between the Group
and its customers. If the Group fails to provide satisfactory performance
to its customers to whom performance guarantees have been given,
such customers may demand the banks to pay to them the sum or
sum stipulated in such demand. The Group will become liable to
compensate such banks accordingly. The performance guarantees will
be released upon completion of the contract works. The performance
guarantees were granted under the banking facilities with details as set
out in note 28.

At the end of each reporting period, as represented by the directors
of the Company, they do not consider it is probable that a claim will be
made against the Group.
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For the year ended 3| March 2022
BE_T-__F-A=1+—HLFE

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 33, EXEE
As at 31 March
R=ZA=+—8H
2022 2021
B CfF —E—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET THETT
Capital expenditure in respect of the EATAMERN R G ISRk
acquisition of property and equipment BEe B YR
contracted for but not provided in the M KR EER B AR
consolidated financial statements 36 60
SHARE OPTION SCHEME 34.  MBERESTEI
On 6 December 2016, the Company conditionally adopted a share RZZE—XRFE+-AH ' AR

option scheme (the “Scheme”) pursuant to a resolution passed by its
shareholders on the same date, for the primary purpose of providing
incentives or rewards to eligible employees (whether full time or part
time, including any executive director), the non-executive directors
(including independent non-executive directors) of the Company, any
subsidiary or any entity in which any member of the Group holds any
equity interest and other eligible participants as specified under the
Scheme. The adoption of the Scheme became unconditional upon the
listing of the Company on 3 January 2017.The Scheme has a life of 10
years.

No share option has been granted by the Company since the adoption
of the Scheme.

ARBEERRRNE BEBARZE
RO BRI RMBRE & (%
AED TZEMRAARQE -
EAMBRRHAEE ERKE
AR E A ) e 1A
EBNAERER (TwEBEER
B BREARTES) BT
EX(BRBIUFNTES) Mz
AHEERNEME BRSEER
HEBRHEE - ERARAR-ZF
—tF—-A=R LM% Zitd
R BR A 0 & K A B AR A o BXAT 8
MEIRATF -

AR E) B R AT B DA AR
AR -
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35.
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INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 358

POSITION OF THE COMPANY

FRRLAUHRRRNOER

As at 3| March

R=A=+—H
2022 2021
—E-F —E-—1F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHERT FET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R B AR KIRE 23 23
Loan to a subsidiary —FNBARMER 18,000 18,000
Debt instruments at amortised cost R RRNEB LA 4715 6113
Financial assets at fair value through BRAFEFABRDY
profit or loss TREE 46,441 31,729
69,179 55,865
Current assets REEE
Other receivables, deposits HAib IR - e
and prepayments SSEENE/ O 507 399
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEMIBT B A RIFRIR 25,458 25,935
Debt instruments at amortised cost REHK AR RRNEB LA - 5,003
Bank balances and cash RITHER LR ® 11,558 23,636
37,523 54973
Current liability REBEE
Other payables and accrued charges Hib R IE R T E A 343 824
Net current assets RBEEFEE 37,180 54,149
Net assets BERE 106,359 110,014
Capital and reserves EAXRFE
Share capital &N 4,000 4,000
Reserves (note) & (Pf=E) 102,359 106,014
Equity attributable to owners of the Company Z<A B1#H A EERER 106,359 110,014
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e PR R M

For the year ended 3| March 2022
BE_T-__F-A=1+—HLFE

35. EBBALAUBRRARNESR

POSITION OF THE COMPANY (Contd) (#&)
Note: P =E
Movement in the Company’s reserves AARNREERD
Share Other Retained
premium reserve profits Total
RADRE H b RE T st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FET
At 1 April 2020 MoE-TEMA—F 83223 3 7,740 90986
Profit and total comprehensive income FREF REARALTE
for the year - - 21,828 21,828
Dividends recognised as distribution R AN KA S = = (6,800) (6,800)
At 31 March 2021 RZZEZ—F=A=+—H 83,223 23 22,768 106,014
Profit and total comprehensive income FRE T R ER AR
for the year - - 11,945 | 1,945
Dividends recognised as distribution R R IR S - - (15,600) (15,600)
At 31 March 2022 RZZTZZF=A=+—H 83,223 23 19,113 102,359

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries at the end of each reporting
period are as follows:

3. KMIEBATIMNERE
AABIMBRATNSREHRL
EJLENE

Equity interest attributable

to the Group as at
ARER T EBEERE
Issued and fully 31 March
Place paid share capital 2022 2021
Name of subsidiary of incorporation Place of operation BEITR ZFSr=lz Principal activities
WELARER b geny BUARRE —¥-=F —EB—F% IRED
Triumph Legend” The BVI Hong Kong US$1,000 100% 100% Investment holding
Triumph Legend’ AERLES G ETH 100% 100% RERR
Blissful Choice” The BVI Hong Kong US$2,000 100% 100% Investment holding
Biisful Choice’ RBRKES B 2000%TT 100% l0o%  RARR
Shun Hing HK* Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$4,800,000 100% 100% Provision of E&M
engineering services
BEER B Bt 48000008 7T 100% 00%  EEEEIRRE
Golden Light Engineering  Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$250,000 100% 100% Inactive
Limited®
BALRERAR® AR B 250000787 100% 0%  EEXE

Subsidiaries directly held by the Company

#

Subsidiaries indirectly held by the Company

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of the
reporting period or at any time during both years.

BARRIEEFEZHBAR
4 BARRMEREZHBAR

BEMBARESNHRERRLM
18 4F 7 & {3 fr] B ) 3% 7T (X (A0 (R 75

ZBE o
Az
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For the year ended 3| March 2022
HE—T__F=A

=t+—RLLFE
37.  RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING ~ 37. ®EFBFELSENHER
ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising from TRFAINAEERE TR AES
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities BENED  BEREKIIRD
arising from financing activities are those for which cash flows were, or 2 - MERHELNABER
future cash flows will be, classified in the Group'’s consolidated statement RERBARKRERENATE
of cash flows as cash flows from financing activities. HEReReEnERTOIERAE
EENREMENAE -
Dividends Lease Bank
payable liabilities borrowings Total
BARE HEAE RATER At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAET THET TET

At | April 2020 R-_Z_TFHHA—H - 6,592 6816 13,408
Financing cash flows MEHETRE (6,800) (2,708) (6,929) (16,437)
Dividends declared EEIRE 6,800 - - 6,800
Leases modified MEEE] - 199 - 199
Finance costs BYE RN - 261 113 374
At 31 March 202 R-B-_—fF=A=+—H - 4,344 - 4,344
Financing cash flows BEHRERE (15,600) (2,182) - (17,782)
Dividends declared EEIRRE 15,600 - - 15,600
New leases entered and ¥ & F] M EEET

leases modified - 498 - 498
Finance costs BE KA - 91 - 91
At 31 March 2022 RZEZZF=HA=+— - 2,751 - 2,751
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Summary of Financial Information

MBENMBE

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group for the five TXHI B R EZEE T HHRED
financial years, as extracted from the audited consolidated financial statements is AEEBLEVBFENEEREERE
set out below. BERHLE -

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

For the year ended 31 March
BEZA=+-HLEFE
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
—F-\E “E-NE ~2-%F = =¥——f
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TET THER TR T FHR
Revenue W 367919 396,348 568428 707,590 753,327
Gross profit 7 62331 47644 54,765 61398 45599
Profit for the year FEREM 35586 22,697 26027 4,134 1,733
Earnings per share SRA
Basic (HK cents) HAR(EA) 89 57 65 110 29
Diluted (HK cents) B8 (B1) 89 57 65 110 29
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MBERBE

CONSOLIDATED ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

ReEE  BERER

As at 3| March

R=A=1+-A
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
“2-N\E “E-NE —ECEE —F- - oot
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FAL AL AL TEL THT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets EREEE 55282 37,140 44369 65,148 75772
Current assets MEBE 260,254 306,858 340,541 44731 432,341
Total assets WEE 315536 343998 384910 512,379 508,113
LIABILITIES af
Current liabilities mEaE 87214 106,682 122,669 215053 216,312
Non-current liabilities ErEEE 280 374 4872 2623 965
Total liabilities waf 87494 107,056 127,541 217676 217277
EQUITY B
Total equity attributable to RNFRA AER
owners of the Company BiEs 228,042 236942 257,369 294,703 290,836
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